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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 5 4 2

2016/2017 2015/2016 Increase/(Decrease)
2016/20175 | 2015/2016F £,/ ORd)
%
Operating results (HK$’000) BEER(B%TR)
Revenue WA 201,815 227,460 (25,645) (11.3)
Gross profit EF 133,243 138,369 (5,126) (3.7)
Profit for the year FREH 8,308 21,215 (12,907) (60.8)
Profitability (%) BN (%)
Gross profit margin EFE 66.0 60.8 5.2 8.6
Net profit margin R = 4.1 9.3 (5.2) (55.9)
Return on equity BARHRE 1.0 6.1 (5.1) (83.6)
Return on total assets BEEDRE 0.9 5.7 (4.8) (84.2)
Liquidity nEBER
Current ratio (time) RENLL R (£2) 11.4 10.6 0.8 7.5
Quick ratio (time) RELE (fF) 111 10.1 1.0 99
Inventory turnover (days) FERE (X&) 58.5 66.6 (8.1) (12.2)
Trade receivables turnover (days) BHRWFIERE (R2) 38.0 37.6 0.4 1.1
Trade payables turnover (days) BHREMNFIERS (RE) 45.8 36.7 9.1 24.8
Per share data SERHE
Earnings per share BREM
- Basic (HK cents) —EAR (B) 0.96 2.65 (1.69) (63.8)
_ Diluted (HK cents) — 85 (1) 0.95 264 (1.69) (64.0)
Dividend per share BRERE
- Interim (HK cents) — R (L) 1.00 1.00 - -
— Final (HK cents) —RE (L) 1.00 1.00 - -
- Special (HK cents) — %5l (&) 100 | NATER NATER NATEA
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Acquisition”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”
“Brand Development

and Management
Segment”

“BV|”

“Company”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

”

“Director(s)

“Fullshare”

“Fullshare Group”

the acquisition of Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical and Tai Wo Tong
Company Limited on 1 June 2015

the audit committee of the Company
the board of Directors

the business segment in which the
Group purchases primarily personal care
products from the brand proprietors and
manages and develops the brand of such
products

the British Virgin Islands

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding
Co. Ltd. HTHEEE (B ) ZERER A A,
an exempted company incorporated with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
28 October 2010

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means each of Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and Genwealth

the director(s) of the Company

Fullshare Holdings Limited ( 2 5% 7= i%
ABE AT, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability
whose issued shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 607)

Fullshare and its subsidiaries
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DEFINITIONS

B

“Genwealth”

“GMP”

“Group” or
“Hin Sang Group”

“Healthcare Segment”

“Hin Feng Group”

“Hin Sang Holding”

Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited ($TE S BEZEREBRAF), a
company incorporated with limited liability
on 5 October 2010 in the BVI, the issued
shares of which are owned as to 90%
by Mr. Pang and 10% by Mrs. Pang, a
controlling shareholder of the Company
under the Listing Rules

“Good Manufacturing Practice” is a
quality assurance approach used by
drug manufacturing industry worldwide
to ensure that products are consistently
produced and controlled according
to appropriate quality standards.
Hong Kong, like most other countries,
has adopted the GMP guidelines
promulgated by the World Health
Organisation (WHO)

the Company and its subsidiaries

the business segment in which the Group
engages in providing Chinese medical
healthcare related services which targets
for mothers and children in Hong Kong
and the PRC

Hin Feng Group (International) Holding
Company Limited $TE2%£E (B ) /%
ABR/AA), a company incorporated with
limited liability on 7 July 2016 in Hong
Kong, owned as to 51% by Hin Sang
Holding and as to 49% by Five Seasons
VIII Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Fullshare)

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited (£7
EEEERABRAA), a company
incorporated with limited liability on 11
September 2006 in the BVI and directly
wholly owned by the Company
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“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

“HK$”

”

“Hong Kong” or “HK

“Listing”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang”

“Period”

“PRC” or “China”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited (74
7B AF]), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 13 June 1996 in
Hong Kong and wholly owned by Hin
Sang Holding and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency
of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (224>$7) , an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (BEESE) , the spouse
of Mr. Pang, an executive Director and a
Controlling Shareholder

the year ended 31 March 2017

the People’s Republic of China which,
for the purposes of this report, excludes
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

the Pre-IPO share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 25
September 2014
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DEFINITIONS
R

“Product Development
Segment”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”
“Stock Exchange”

“Tai Wo Tong

Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods
Segment”

the business segment in which the Group
develops own personal care products,
health supplements and household
products sold under its own brands,
including but not limited to “Beautymate
(ZEMNMDFK)”, “Hin Sang ($74£) 7,
“Shuang Long (#%) " and “King’s
Antiseptic (FHEE)”

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited ( KF=2%% (FE) B
fR/A®]), a company incorporated with
limited liability on 6 April 2009 in Hong
Kong

the business segment in which the Group
engages in trading and distributing skin
care products, personal care products
and household products purchased
from various authorised dealers and
independent traders or directly from
suppliers
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Kwan Lai Man
Dong Meixian (Appointed on 4 July 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Wong Wai Ling
Yuen Chi Ping (Appointed on 4 July 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors

Lee Luk Shiu
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Tsui Nam Hung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman)
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Tsui Nam Hung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Tsui Nam Hung (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man

Lee Luk Shiu

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man

Lee Luk Shiu

Tsui Nam Hung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wong Ting Dan (Resigned on 1 July 2017)
Polien Kho (Appointed on 1 July 2017)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Pang Siu Hin
Kwan Lai Man
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2 A EOR

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1213-1215, 12/F, Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

Chak & Associates

AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE/REGISTERED OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
COMPANY WEBSITE
www.hinsanggroup.com

STOCK CODE

Equity: 6893.hk

ENQUIRES

Company:

Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com
Public Relations Consultant:

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Email: HSH_enquiry@sprg.com.hk
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Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
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E# : HSH_enquiry@sprg.com.hk
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As at 31 March 2017

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd.
TEEE (B #ERED

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
2 ] R

R201743A31H

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited
PTAE SR EER Al

Holding Company Limited

PTIE 5 RAE]

PTETTRIRAR]

100% HM Advertising Compan IS 100% QAN (Canada) Health Products L|m|ted
100% Chong Sang (HK) Company Limited 100% Yaome Nihon Company Limited
Z BAEREARAR
100% Hin Sang Hong Company Limited 100% Yaome Nihon Corporation
PTEITERAR AXREREHRA S

100% 100% " Hin Tai Pharmaceutical (Shenzhen)
— Beautymate Hong Kong Limited E— Beautymate Internanonal LIS Company lelted b

L[ Hong Kong Pharmaceutical & Research 100% Hin Sang Holding Group (Shenzhen) 100% Hin Yau Commercial (Shenzhen)
— Institute Co., Limited — Company Limited * Company L|m|ted &

) Hf PTAEEREE OF ) B

100% Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical 100% ; i 100% Hin Hong Commercial (Shenzhen)

— (Hong Kong) Company Limited e E;fggn;pan% Limie Company L|m|ted &
! &%) ARAR] = p

100% Hong Kong Medicine Manufactory: 100% Hong Kong Pharmaceutical & Research

— Holdings Co., Ltd. Institute Co., Ltd
BUERRRERAR 5
100%
100% Hin On Internatlonal Company Limited 100% Hin Feng Hong Company Limited
PTEITERA
100% ; ; i 100% Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical & F(OL73 NanJing Hin Sang Animation Production
Hin Hong International Company Limited
— PTREIRARAR — Health Service Company Limited — Company Limited *
TRERARA P4 SR E R B O ERAR %
bl i eno crow (O RGN 1 eng nvestment (Nanding) Co. L RGN oring i e Cricie S
" s ~ = HTEIEE (FAR) BRAR . £3 == o B =
EEE ERARAR TR (R WA R B BRABAR
68% Hin Fai International 100% HinlFailHongGomra NI LI Hin Fai Electronic Commerce (Shenzhen)

Company Limited *
PR TEE ORI BRAR

Y RN

* The English name is for identification only
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THE GROUP
AHH

OVERVIEW

The Group is engaged in the marketing, selling and manufacturing
of healthcare products primarily target at children, among which
“Hin Sang (£T74) " has been a long established reputable brand.
To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group continues to expand
the e-commerce business through electronic platforms. To leverage
existing resources to increase profit and the products diversification,
the Group also represents reputable brands in skin care, personal
care and slimming product categories. Under the fast-growing
market, mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as
diagnosis and treatment services projects are underway.

Our business operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, though our
products are distributed through distributor appointments in the PRC,
Taiwan, Macau, and export markets such as Malaysia.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group has four business segments classified by their ownership,
licensing rights and services rendered: (i) Product Development
Segment in which the Group develops own products sold under
our own brands; (i) Brand Development and Management Segment
in which the Group purchases from the brand proprietors and
manages and develops the brand of such products; (i) Trading
of Goods Segment in which the Group engages in trading and
distributing products purchased from various authorised dealers and
independent traders or directly from suppliers; and (iv) Healthcare
Segment in which the Group engages in providing Chinese medical
healthcare related services which targets for mothers and children in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Product Development Segment

We leverage on our distribution and sales experience to develop our
own healthcare products, personal care products and household
products. Our core brands are the brands owned by us in various
categories including “Hin Sang (#74) ", “Beautymate (E /LD
7)) ", “Tai Wo Tong (AF%E)” and “Shuang Long (E8E)". We
started developing the “Hin Sang (74 ) ” brand in 2004 mainly for
our health supplements. “Tai Wo Tong (KFI =) " was developed in
2012 mainly for our proprietary Chinese medicine category.
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During the Period, we outsourced the production of all our own
branded products to external manufacturers in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Taiwan.

Brand Development and Management Segment

We have a proven history of managing and developing a number
of brands for our brand proprietors (who are mainly manufacturers
and brand proprietors of the products) in respect of their personal
care products mainly in the market in Hong Kong since 1999. The
Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with each of
the brand proprietors and provided them with one-stop marketing,
sales and distribution, logistic and delivery services for their branded
products. All the brand proprietors in the Brand Development and
Management Segment are independent third parties of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Amongst the products managed and developed by us for the brand
proprietors, the bath and shower products under the brands of
“Acene (RE) ", “Enear (#3F) ", “Venic ({fEH ) " and “Zici (%
3%) " are well known to local households in Hong Kong. To further
expand, we have added “Burner (fZ#4)”, the number one seller
in slimming product in Taiwan for nine consecutive years, become
the hot item in the market and “See Young ()& ) ”, a non-silicone
shampoo & conditioner product with Korean star “Song Hye Kyo (R

23 ) " being the spokesperson.

Trading of Goods Segment

Since 1996, the Group has served our trade customers with high
quality products sourced from authorized dealers and overseas
suppliers. Products within this segment with low profit margin
will be phased out, and more resources will be put into Product
Development Segment which is expected to yield higher profit
margin.

Healthcare Segment

Healthcare is a hot topic around the World. We have established a
reputable brand in own branded healthcare products. To come up
with the World’s trend, we will provide different types of healthcare
related services in HK and the PRC. As announced on 1 December
2016, we are having a project in advocating healthy living under the
relaxing plot of the animation. In addition, the first flagship healthcare
center located in HK was soft opened on 29 May 2017 and will be
officially opened on 25 June 2017.
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CHAIRMAN’ § STATEMENT
3 A

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors of Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

ANNUAL REVIEW

Hong Kong'’s retail environment has been volatile for the past year.
According to the Hong Kong Statistic Bureau, retail sales plummet
to a 17-year low in 2016. The Group is facing a more competitive
environment comparing with previous years. Though there were
numerous factors affecting the Group’s performance this year, we
were still able to maintain a substantial market share in the children
healthcare products sector.

The Group has also managed to open new opportunities in the
healthcare segment focusing on Chinese Medical Clinic for children
(“Chinese Medical Clinic”). Our first clinic was soft opened on 29 May
2017 in Shek Mun Shatin, Hong Kong and will be officially opened on
25 June 2017.
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The Group has laid a firm foundation for a long term development
in the healthcare business. Although the market environment is very
competitive, the Group believes that this segment in a niche market
and in the long run, it will generate a decent revenue and brings in
value for the Group. Most importantly, the Group is dedicated to
nurture children and sincerely believes that children are the most
cherished member of our society, and it is our top priority to care
for them. The Group would like to see children benefiting from this
ancient wisdom.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately HK$201.8 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 11.3% from HK$227.5 million of last
year. For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately HK$8.3 million, representing a decline of
approximately 60.8% from HK$21.2 million of last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PROSPECTS

Hong Kong market will continue to contribute significantly to the
Group’s revenue, and in the future, the Group will allocate more
resources to the China market as the two-child policy takes place.
The Group believes that as a result of the two-child policy, the
demand for our products will drastically increase in China, expecting
5 to 7 milion newborn babies in 2017. The Group will continue to
expand our distribution network by recruiting additional distributors
and increase publicity to further extend our customer base.

The Group will also continue to allocate resources on new product
development, in order to enrich health supplements portfolio and
enhance the brand concept as being the specialist in providing health
supplements. Through reasonable change of product mix, the Group
will ensure that only those products with high sales volume potential
to be retained within our product portfolio.
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Notice the emergence of online shopping is the future shopping
trend, the Group has established an e-commerce company in May
2016. An online sales platform focusing on products under “Hin Sang
($74) ” brand, through which customers, particularly those in China
can place their orders directly and enjoy home delivery services. We
will continue to introduce more health supplements onto the platform
to expand our product portfolio and marketing scale.

Looking forward, the Group expects that our fundamental business
will continue to grow as result of the two-child policy. In order to cater
for the huge market of mother-infant healthcare, the Group have
established a company with Fullshare Group to expand the business
of mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis
and treatment services. The Group believes that the company can
leverage on the financial resources, experience and connections of
the shareholders to develop its business in the healthcare industry
which will further diversify and broaden the scope of the healthcare
business of the Group. The Group will make relentless effort to
reward the investors’ trust and support.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
members of the board of Directors, management and employees
for their valuable contributions to the development of the Group as
well as to our shareholders, investors and business partners for their
continuous trust and support to our Group. We believe the year
ahead will be full of opportunities and challenges. Hin Sang Group
(International) Holding Co. Ltd. will continue to make effort to create
greater values for our Shareholders and investors.

Yours faithfully
Pang Siu Hin
Chairman

23 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Period, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$201.8 million, representing a decrease of 11.3% as compared to
approximately HK$227.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Due to the weak retail market in Hong Kong and the continuous
effect resulting from the change of policy of Shenzhen permanent
residents’ multiple-entry permits to one-visit-one-week, sales
revenues for Hong Kong market declined significantly during the
Period, whereas the PRC market still recorded a satisfactory growth.
“Hin Sang (74 ) " brand, now available in 19 provinces in the PRC,
has been receiving continuous advertising support to effectively reach
couples with children through broadcasting new TV commercials on
nationwide networks with high frequency, contributing to a natural
growth in the PRC market.

During the Period, the Product Development Segment was still the
largest segment which contributed approximately 88.7% of the
Group’s revenue compared to 81.4% of the total revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2016. Revenue contribution from the Brand
Development and Management Segment decreased from 13.4% for
the last financial year to 9.4% for the Period. The Trading of Goods
Segment recorded a continuous drop in revenue and its revenue
contribution to the Group dropped from approximately 5.2% for
the last financial year to approximately 1.9% for the Period. As the
Healthcare Segment was newly established in the Period and was
in a startup stage, this segment did not record any revenue for the
Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

O DU ik i B 2 e

Product Development Segment

For the Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells personal care products, healthcare products and household
products under its own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang ($7
4 )7, “Beautymate (FENLDFE) ” and “Shuang Long (E#E) " (“top
three brands”).

As compared to the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue from “Hin
Sang (#74 ) " products decreased slightly by 0.2% or approximately
HK$318,000 for the Period and the revenue from “Beautymate (3£
ML) ” dropped by 38.6% or approximately HK$4.4 million for the
Period due to more fierce market competition than last financial year.

As a result, the revenue of this segment dropped to approximately
HK$178.9 million for the Period from approximately HK$185.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2016. This segment’s profit for the
Period was approximately HK$24.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$50,000 or 0.2% as compared to that of the
year ended 31 March 2016. This segment’s profit margin for the
Period was approximately 13.5%, while the profit margin for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was approximately 13.1%.

The aggregate revenue generated from the top three brands of this
segment amounted to approximately HK$174.8 million for the Period,
representing 97.7% of this segment’s revenue as compared to
approximately HK$180.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2016,
representing 97.4% of the revenue of this segment.

Brand Development and Management Segment

For the Brand Development and Management Segment, the Group
sells and distributes products with exclusive distribution rights. The
three major brands of this Segment are “See Young CZJR ) ”, “Acene
(GBE) " and “Burner (fZ#4) "
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

“Burner (fZ#4)” was a newly agented brand during the Period.
More resources on promotion and advertising were allocated which
resulted in it being one of the major brands of the Group during the
Period.

This segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$30.5 million
and HK$19.0 million for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017,
representing a year on year decrease of approximately 37.6%.
This segment’s loss for the Period was approximately HK$2.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$7.0 million or
158.0% as compared to that of the year ended 31 March 2016.
This segment’s loss margin for the Period was approximately 13.5%
while the profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately 14.4%.

Total revenue of these three major brands amounted to
approximately HK$9.7 million and HK$10.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2016 and 2017 respectively, representing approximately
31.8% and 55.3% of this segment’s revenue of the respective
periods.

Trading of Goods Segment

Trading of Goods Segment distributes those products purchased
from authorised dealers, independent traders, manufacturers or
parallel importers. This segment’s contribution to total revenue
and profit is relatively smaller when compared with the above two
segments.

This segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$11.9 million
and HK$3.8 million for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017,
representing a year on year decrease of approximately 67.7%. This
segment’s loss for the Period was approximately HK$371,000,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$125,000 or 25.2%
as compared to the loss of approximately HK$496,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2016. This segment’s loss margin for the Period
was approximately 9.7% while the loss margin for the last financial
year was approximately 4.2%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

O DU ik i B 2 e

The decrease of revenue in this segment for the Period was the
consequence of the shift of the management’s focus from this
segment which has lower profit margin to the Product Development
Segment which has higher profit margin, which was executed in
response to the product development initiative of the Group to
enhance brand awareness of its own branded products.

Healthcare Segment

Healthcare Segment provides different types of healthcare related
services in Hong Kong and the PRC for mothers and children.
Since this segment is newly established during the Period and all
projects are underway, no revenue was recorded during the Period.
This segment recorded loss for the Period of approximately HK$3.8
million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 171 staff as at 31 March 2017. The
employees of the Group are on fixed salary. The Group has devised
an assessment system for its employees and the Group uses the
assessment result for salary review and promotion decisions. All of
the employees undergo a performance appraisal once a year. Such
an appraisal provides the Group with an opportunity to assess each
individual employee’s strengths and areas for improvement, thereby
enabling the Group to effectively train and develop each individual
employee. A Share Options Scheme was adopted in September
2014 to recognise and acknowledge those employees who have
made contribution to the Group.

PROSPECTS

In recent years, a relatively stronger Hong Kong dollar versus
Renminbi had reduced the consumption sentiment of Mainland
visitors in Hong Kong. With such a tough local market, chain retailers
in Hong Kong in general has been recording an overall decline in
revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the tough environment, the Board considered that “Hin
Sang ($74) " has been well-positioned to meet the increasing
demand of consumers in Hong Kong and China for high quality
health supplement. Therefore, the Group is confident that Hong
Kong market can still provide a stable platform for its business
development. In order to tackle the upcoming challenges and seize
the opportunities ahead, the Group will remain cautious when
carrying out the following initiatives with an aim to creating values for
the Shareholders:

(@) To expand in the mother-infant healthcare market
through joint venture with the Fullshare Group

The Group has established a joint venture company with
Fullshare Group to expand the business of mother-infant
Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services to capture this fast-growing market. Hin Sang Herbaby
Health Centre was soft opened on 29 May 2017 in Shek Mun
Shatin, Hong Kong and will be officially opened on 25 June
2017.

In addition, the Group will form joint venture companies with
EREPEYREEZRAR A (Nanjing South Chinese
Medical Fullshare Health Institute Company*) to operate
Chinese medical clinics in Nanjing, the PRC. The Directors
believe that these joint venture companies can further leverage
on the financial resources, management experience and
expertise of the Group and R P B LR FERERGR A
7] (Nanjing South Chinese Medical Fullshare Health Institute
Company®), in light of the huge opportunity brought by the
“two-child” policy of the PRC. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 June 2017.

GETEE L i

BETRER EFARMTLEIEEZR
ETEEmERERTEBEEHEER
BmBmERAOTR Bt NEEBES
AMBNAAERBERRER —EREN
F oo REYAIKEIRNEAMICES R
Wil ANEBESREFRRIESE MK
B PA R IR IR BEE(E

() ZRHEEREERVSELER
REBRETS

AEEEHEREERNISERE

NHBFEETPEREURZE AR
RIS BN B I IRRERZT
e TERERBREP LRN2017F
5H20B RN BE B BAFIRSE I
#2017 6 4258 IE % -

IEAN - SR R R R R P B S R R R
BRBRABKIAEERLNHE
MRRERED-ENTE [ —#&]
BERSRIE—EAKE EFHEXF
BELRAE-PERAKELER
MRELRERERARAF B
AR ERERIERNH - BHE—
FHBEN A AT HER201756 88
SN

“E-LFFR TEEE (AR ERBRAF 19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(b) To further expand Hin Fai’s e-commerce for own-

(c)

20

branded products

Hin Fai International Holding Company Limited (“Hin Fai”) was
set up as the Group’s online platform to promote e-commerce
sales. In light of the rapid development of e-commerce, Hin Fai
recorded approximately HK$9.1 million in revenue during the
Period. Since May 2016, the Group’s online sales has been
operating by independent third party merchants. In the future,
the Group will increase its resources allocation to this segment
with a view to further expanding this business segment.

To continue enhancing brand recognition of the
Group’s own brands

The Group has developed the “Hin Sang ($74) ” brand into
a well-recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective
targeted advertising program which is well-positioned
emphasising on product safety and quality. To further enhance
the popularity of the Group’s own branded products in Hong
Kong as well as the brand awareness and image in the PRC,
the Group’s new product development initiative will focus
on canned botanical beverages and extension of health
supplement. “Hin Sang Health Star Botanical Beverage (7T
HE+E2%)” and “Hin Sang Shiny Eye Botanical Beverage
(PTHRHE) " are expected to be launched in summer 2017
through effective and innovative promotional channels. The
Group expects to continue to further capture the motherinfant
healthcare market in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(d) To expand the manufacturing arm of the Group

The Group acquired a commercial property which has been
used as its principal place of business in Hong Kong since
December 2016. This self-use office would have potential in
capital appreciation, and can also finance the Group’s further
developments. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 16 June 2016 and 1 December 2016,
respectively.

The Group plans to develop its own manufacturing arm to
enhance the production efficiency of its own branded products
in order to capture opportunities ahead. The Group intends
to develop a production plant for manufacturing health
supplements in Yunfu City of the Guangdong Province, the
PRC, aiming to increase the production volume and efficiency
and attaining more stringent quality control. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 June
2017.

The English name is for identification only
FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$201.8 million for the
Period as compared to approximately HK$227.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016, representing a year on year decrease of
11.3%. Such decrease was mainly due to the decline in revenue from
the Hong Kong market, as a result of the stagnant retail market in
Hong Kong given a cautious sentiment of the local customers.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 23.0% from approximately
HK$89.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately
HK$68.6 million for the Period. Such decrease in cost of sales was
primarily due to the significant drop in purchase costs under the
Brand Development and Management Segment and the Trading of
Goods Segment by 41.3% and 68.3%, respectively, as compared to
that of previous period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

O DU ik i B 2 e

In relation to the decrease in sales under the Product Development
Segment, cost of sales decreased slightly by 7.9% from
approximately HK$57.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
approximately HK$53.2 million for the Period.

The change in cost of sales for all business segments were in line
with the corresponding fluctuations in revenue for the Period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 3.7% from approximately
HK$138.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately
HK$133.2 million for the Period. The gross profit margin for the
Period increased from 60.8% to 66.0%, which was mainly due to
the increase in the proportion of sales of the Product Development
Segment which has a relatively higher margin.

Other Income

The Group’s other income decreased from approximately HK$5.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately HK$5.1
million for the Period. Such decrease of other income was mainly
due to the net decrease in interest income from bank deposits and
loan receivables of approximately HK$303,000 and compensation of
approximately HK$302,000 paid by a brand proprietor for breach of
contract during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Other Gains and Losses

Other losses increased by approximately HK$2.8 million from loss of
approximately HK$3.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
loss of approximately HK$6.7 million for the Period. The significant
increase in loss was attributable to the one-off gain of approximately
HK$3.9 million resulted from the acquisition of Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical and Tai Wo Tong Company Limited during the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 14.2% from
approximately HK$47.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2016
to approximately HK$41.0 million for the Period. Such decrease in
selling and distribution expenses was attributable to the decrease in
advertising expenses in Hong Kong due to the change of the Group’s
marketing and advertising strategy by conducting more marketing
and advertising on paper media than on TV media in Hong Kong.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 18.6% from approximately
HK$65.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately
HK$77.7 million for the Period which was mainly attributable to
(i) the increase in staff costs (excluding share-based payment
expenses) from approximately HK$33.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2016 to approximately HK$35.9 million for the Period;
(i) the increase of depreciation and amortisation expenses from
approximately HK$4.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
approximately HK$7.4 million relating to the depreciation of newly
acquired commercial properties (used as office) in Hong Kong; (iii)
the increase in office expenses from approximately HK$8.5 million for
the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately HK$11.3 million for
the Period; and (iv) the increase in legal and professional fees from
approximately HK$4.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
approximately HK$5.2 million for the Period.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge decreased by 18.4% from approximately
HK$5.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately
HK$4.7 milion for the Period, while the effective tax rates were
21.4% and 36.2%, respectively. The decrease in tax charge was
in line with the decrease in profit before tax from approximately
HK$27.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to approximately
HK$13.0 million for the Period.

TE-LFFR

GETEE L i

HERDHMAX

HE R MY AEE2016F3A31HIEF
EWH47 8B BAE TR A 14.2%E AN B H)
410 BB ILIHE R A RIETD
MR EBRR BB EREE AEEFZHRA
BT EHERESEE  EmE
TEMSEHERESRE SRREBNE
ERZR D -

TTERBX

TR AEZE20169F3A31B LFENL
65.58 &8 TIE IN18.6% =AM M 477.7
BEEAET TEHRNE XK (FEEN
IR BERENRFEX) BEE20165F3 A
31H L FEM4)33.8F &8 i i = A 5
MEHAS5.9B BB T (INEBHWERE
M (RERSE)INEF@ 2 ITE R#HE
BABEZE2016F3A31H EFEMHLH4.3
BEBTEMELN7TAGEB T (AR
Y HEE2016F3A31H It FEH85EH B
BT MEAHEA11.38 88T Miv)E
EREEERREE2016F3A31H ILFE
M4 1B BB TIENEABENLS.2HE
BT e

BiE

REBE 2 HIEZ HAREZE2016F3H31H Lt
FEMLS5.88 BHE LM 18.4% % AN HifH
W4 TEEBIT MEBERED R H21.4%
5:36.2% o T4 18 52 R T B BR % Al s A1 BB
HZE2016F3A31HILFEMA27.08 BB
TR ERPENO130EEB T K

frEgE (AR BRERAT 23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profit for the Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit decreased by
60.8% from approximately HK$21.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2016 to approximately HK$8.3 million for the Period, and net
profit margin decreased from 9.3% to 4.1% for the Period.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories decreased by 32.0% from approximately
HK$13.1 million as at 31 March 2016 to approximately HK$8.9
million as at 31 March 2017, which was primarily due to the decrease
in finished products for distribution by 33.7% from approximately
HK$11.5 million as at 31 March 2016 to approximately HK$7.6
million as at 31 March 2017. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in inventories of healthcare products of the Product
Development Segment. The inventory turnover days decreased from
66.6 days for the year ended 31 March 2016 to 58.5 days for the
Period.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables decreased by 34.3% from
approximately HK$25.3 million as at 31 March 2016 to approximately
HK$16.7 million as at 31 March 2017, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in trade receivables from distributors
arising from the purchase of healthcare products of the Product
Development Segment. Trade receivables turnover days increased
from 37.6 days for the year ended 31 March 2016 to 38.0 days for
the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s bank balances and cash increased by 20.5%
from approximately HK$239.7 million as at 31 March 2016 to
approximately HK$288.9 million as at 31 March 2017. As at 31
March 2017, the Group had no outstanding bank borrowings and the
amount of unutilised banking facilities was approximately HK$138.8
million. The gearing ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at
31 March 2017 was nil (31 March 2016: nil). The current ratio (total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 March 2017
was 11.4 (31 March 2016: 10.6).

Financial Management and Policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. All the Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s related
policies is made under collective but extensive considerations on
liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk.

The executive Directors, with the assistance of the Group’s financial
controller, are responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and
analyzing the investment opportunities of the Group. The executive
Directors also regularly monitor the cash position and funding
requirement of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities.
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0 N B B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (22 $7) , aged 52, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of the Group
and has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group since 1996. He is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, formulation of the corporate policies and the day-to-
day management of the Group. Mr. Pang has about 20 years of
experience in the distribution, marketing and sale of healthcare
products, personal care products and household products, the
experience of which was gained from the operation of the Group.
Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce since 2005, the honourable president of The
Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Limited ( & &b 4T
mAEHE B A A) in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong
Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association Limited ( & /& A %2 3£ 1
2 AR AR in 2009. Mr. Pang was appointed as the vice president
of Hong Kong & Kowloon Kit Yeung Clansmen General Association
Limited (BB NWEEBERBAEGHERAF) in 2009, the executive
vice president in 2013 and became perpetual honourable president
in 2017. Since 2009, Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Chiu
Chow Clansmen’s Association of Yuen Long District, Limited ( 7T5A
= BN RIZB@ AR A F]) | the vice president in 2011 and became the
chairman in 2017. In 2010, he became the life honorary chairman of
Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association ( &7
xRy|P B € ) | and titled as the advisor in 2016,
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Mr. Pang is an active participant in the work of charities, appointed
as the director of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong from 2009 to 2011,
the vice chairman since 2012, and became the chairman since 2017.
He worked as the honourable president of Junior Police Call (Yuen
Long District) since 2010, a member of the standing committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Jieyang
Province, the PRC, a member of Yuen Long Town Area Committee
under the Home Affairs Department in 2012, and a member of the
Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education under the Home
Affairs Department in 2014.

Moreover, Mr. Pang became the co-chairman of New Territories
Walk for Milions Organizing Committee of The Community Chest
of Hong Kong (&& Az ) since 2014. He was titled as the vice
president of Shenzhen Enterprise Confederation (JZ 3Il T 1 2 B
A2 )in 2015, and the executive vice president of Tin Yan Charity
Organization (KB &% L) and the honourable president of
Shen Kong Jiexi Chamber of Commerce Limited CEBIEFAR S AR
AA])in 2016. In 2017, Mr. Pang was appointed as the honourable
advisor of Hong Kong Children, Babies, Maternity Industries
Association Limited (BB 22 EZ X2 HR /A F]), the honourable
president of the management committee in Hong Kong Love &
Care Charity Foundation Limited (BB LEEESESERAA])
and the vice president of the Jiangsu Province Reflecting Health
Industry Association (VL& R GTRHEITHHE ) and president of
its children’s health preservation branch. He is also the life honorary
chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association focusing on the
development of education work in the PRC since 2010. Mr. Pang Siu
Hin is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
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Ms. Kwan Lai Man (FAEES) , aged 45, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations. She
has about 20 years of experience in the distribution, marketing and
sale of healthcare products, personal care products and household
products, the experience of which was gained from the operation of
the Group. She is also devoted in the development of education work
in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education
Fund Association since 2010. In 2017, she is appointed as the
vice president of Hong Kong Children, Babies, Maternity Industries
Association Limited (BEAZLEZXHEBRAF) . Ms. Kwan Lai
Man is the wife of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.

Dr. Dong Meixian (E34ll) , aged 45, was appointed in July
2016 as an executive Director. Dr. Dong has more than 20 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical and health industry. She obtained
a bachelor’s degree from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine, in
July 1994, majoring in traditional Chinese medicine, and awarded
with a PhD in Integrated Traditional and Western Preclinical Medicine
by Guangzhou University of Chinese Medicine in July 2006. She
has served in the National food and Drug Administration Southern
Medicine Economic Research Institute and some of the fortune 500
companies, and was responsible for the development of primary
health products and technology market. She has worked in various
senior positions in the technical departments among companies
such as Amway, Procter & Gamble, Pepsi, leading product line
layout and participating in making of strategic marketing decision.
Dr. Dong is currently a Chief Health Technology Officer of Guangzhou
Fullshare Health Management Limited Company, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 00607).
Fullshare Holdings Limited is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (B2 ¥ ), aged 56, was appointed in
November 2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more
than 25 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing.
She received a bachelor’'s degree in arts from the University of
Hong Kong in November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting
and Finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science, University of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985.
Ms. Wong was registered as a certified public accountant of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an
associate of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in April 1990. She has worked for more than seven years in major
international accounting firms and major local accounting firms
before she set up her own accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co.,
in Hong Kong in 1993. Since then, she has been practising as a
Certified Public Accountant. Ms. Wong is an independent non-
executive director of four Hong Kong listed companies, namely,
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code:
3608), China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 527), Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3366), AVIC International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited) (stock code: 161). Ms. Wong
also acts as the chairperson of the audit committee of each of these
listed companies. Ms. Wong was an executive director of Tonking
New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously known as JC
Group Holdings Limited) (Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) stock
code: 8326) and resigned on 18 October 2016. She was also an
independent non-executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited
(GEM stock code: 8059) and resigned on 22 March 2016.
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Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (E&®F), aged 38, was appointed in July
2016 as a non-executive Director. Mr. Yuen is qualified lawyer in both
Hong Kong, and England and Wales. Mr. Yuen has over 12 years of
experience practicing as a lawyer in the PRC and Hong Kong, and
has extensive experience in corporate law, China-related public and
private mergers and acquisitions, and capital market transactions.
Mr. Yuen obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws in 2001 and
completed the PCLL programme in 2002 in the University of Hong
Kong, then undertook his traineeship and worked as a lawyer in
various leading international firms. He worked as a special counsel in
the Shanghai office of Baker & McKenzie and was responsible for the
firm’s securities practice in Shanghai. Mr. Yuen is the chief operating
officer of Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 607). Fullshare
Holdings Limited is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Yuen is also the chief executive officer and an executive director
of Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) since
September 2016, and a non-executive director of China High Speed
Transmission Equipment Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 658).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu ( ZEi#Jk ) , aged 59, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has about
30 years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1987. He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for
around 15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his
duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed
companies in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and
processing new listing applications. His last position with the Stock
Exchange was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division.
Mr. Lee was also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5
years from 2007 to 2012. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-
executive director of Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 336) since 1 May 2006 and Yee Hop Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1662) since 25 November 2015 the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (B2 8 ) , aged 48, was appointed
in November 2010 as an independent non-executive Director.
Dr. Tang has over 15 years of experience in the financial and
securities sector. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business,
majoring in finance from Edith Cowan University, Australia in February
1993 and holds a PhD. degree in Economics from Renmin University
of China in July 2007. Dr. Tang has over 14 years of experience in
the financial and securities sector. He became a senior associate of
the Australian Institute of Banking and Finance in December 1995
and was appointed as Hong Kong Chief Analyst by the Finance and
Securities Institute of Renmin University of China in December 2010.
He is the executive director and vice chairman of Jun Yang Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 397) the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is also the CEO and director of Jun Yang
Securities Company Limited which is the subsidiaries of Jun Yang
Financial Holdings Limited since April 2015. He is also the executive
director of AP Assets Limited. He is also the chairman of The Hong
Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional Commentators
Limited and the executive committee member of the Hong Kong
Securities Professionals Association. He is also currently a non-
executive director of Edvance International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8410). He has been a part-time lecturer of the Master of Social
Science in Global Political Economy Programme of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong since September 2010.

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (#& @ #), aged 64, was appointed in
November 2010 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Tsui
has over 23 years of experience in finance control and business
logistics. He received a certificate in management jointly held by
the Hong Kong Management Association and The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in September 1990. He has worked for more
than 20 years in a global distributor of branded personal and family
care product from May 1987 and his last position in that company
was finance director and supply chain leader before his retirement
in May 2010. He gained his finance and business logistics related
experience through working in the global distributor.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Ting Dan (E& ), aged 47, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 February
2016. Ms. Wong graduated from the University of Manchester with
a Bachelor of Laws degree in 2005 and was admitted as a solicitor
of the High Court of Hong Kong in 2010. She is currently a solicitor
of Fairbairn Catley Low & Kong, Solicitors. Ms. Wong has handled
a wide range of corporate transactions, regulatory compliances and
other commercial matters. She resigned on 1 July 2017.

Ms. Polien Kho (¥8& ), aged 34, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 July 2017.
Ms. Kho is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators respectively. She has more than 9 years of experience
in producing company secretarial services to private and listed
companies.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit (S ZE##), aged 34, is the key account
manager of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005 since
graduation and is responsible for managing the daily operation of the
sales department. In particular, he was responsible for managing skin
care products, personal care products, general food products as well
as Chinese medicine products and handling daily operational matters
with chain retailers. He graduated from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in science in 2005.
Since then, he has been working at the Group’s sales department
and made valuable contribution to the Group. Mr. Cheuk is familiar
with the Group’s internal operation and external sales strategies. He
has accumulated 12 years of relevant experience.

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (Z %3 ), aged 50, is the assistant
information technology director of the Group. He joined the Group
in May 2004 and is responsible for its network administration and
provides information technology support. He received a certificate
of an advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic
commerce in the London International College for Further and
Higher Education in June and September 2001 respectively. Prior to
joining the Group, he has worked as a technical support supervisor
providing information technology support, network administration,
hardware and software development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and
has worked as a supervisor supervising a team of technicians and
servicing personnel from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated more
than 20 years of relevant experience.
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1) Scope of Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report was
prepared in accordance to the Listing Rules’ Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide”. It covered the operations of the head office of
the Group and the principal place of business of Hin
Sang Hong Company Limited in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The report is publicated once a
year.

2) Group Policy

The Group has been consistently practicing and striving
to improve its work in the areas of environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”). Consequently, policies have
been established to disclose the Group’s visions to
Shareholders and public on the followings:

- To devote to the society through contribution and

services;

+ To pursue continuous improvement in the culture of

governance;

- To collaborate with business partners and employees by

upholding accountability, fairness, devotion and integrity;

- To dedicate to attaining sustainable development and

achievement for all Shareholders and stakeholders; and

- To emphasise on environmental protection

3) Community Service

"The Eternal Extension of Life" is the Group’s motto. By
connecting with the community, the Group is striving to
instill hope and provide support to the disadvantaged and
contribute to the society, while cultivating a sense of
belonging among the Group’s employees. Driven by this
social responsibility, the Group took every effort to partici-
pate in community services and charity events over the
past years. Hin Sang Hong Company Limited has
attained the award of “Caring Company” from The Hong
Kong Council of Social Services for 10 years in a row.

Board members of our Group actively dedicated to
charity events. Mr. Pang Siu Hin, Chairman of the Group
is cordially participating in public positions of social and
charitable organizations, including but not limited to
chairman of Pok Oi Hospital 2017/2018 board, event
co-chairman of The Community Chest New Territories
Walk Organising Committee, honorary president of Yuen
Long District Junior Police Calls honorary president
committee, school manager of POH Tang Pui King
memorial College since 2010/2011 and committee
member of Home Affairs Department - Yuen Long Town
Area Committee. Besides, Ms. Kwan Lai Man, executive
Director of the Group is vice president of Hong Kong
Children, Babies, Maternity Industries Association
Limited and life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Educa-
tion Fund Association. Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, non- executive
Director of the Group is a director of Pok Oi Hospital
2017/2018 board.
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Hin Sang Scholarship

“Hin Sang Scholarship” was established in 2015, aims at
awarding and sponsoring students from low-income
families in order to bring upon positive impact to their lifes.

The 2nd Hin Sang Scholarship was organised in 2016 with
judging panel from famous people in academic and
commercial sectors. Each of the 18 student winners was
awarded with scholarship of HK$20,000, gifts worth of
HK$10,000 as well as the Certificate of Award. Awards
Ceremony and luncheon was organised in October 2016
with participants from various sectors, including councillors,
academia, business celebrities and artists shared the
experience to encourage the awarded students. The 3rd
Scholarship has also been initiated since March 2017 with
enlarged beneficiary scope and increased scholarship
amount. The Group hopes to support more students from
low-income families with a view to enhance their competi-
tiveness edges for contribution to the society in the future.

Hin Sang Volunteering Team

The Group encourages employees to participate in
volunteering work, “Hin Sang Volunteering Team”, was
formed by our employees in 2006 which actively partici-
pated in various community and charitable activities.
During the Period, the team participated in various
events including “The Community Chest New Territories
Walk”, “Shanghai Commercial Bank Pok Oi Cycle for
Millions 2017” and “Pok Oi Charity Heritage Walk” to
raise funds for “Pok Oi Hospital Emergency Assistance
Funds” and “Family and Children Welfare Service”
sponsored by The Community Chest.

The Group has devoted various resources to support
education, charity, environmental protection and other
community events. During the Period, the Group mainly
organized or participated the community services / events:
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Cash Donation /

Staff Involvement /

Organisation Event Description Sponsorship Product Donation Volunteering
Mg EERAE HERE / g E iR BIZ2H | BIRH
Hin Sang Group Organised the 2nd “Hin Sang
(International) Scholarship”, provided financial aid
Holding Co. Ltd. to students from low-income families ’ (%) Qo
- _ in Hong Kong to help them improve m\Y
TEsRE (ER) their learning environment and ."";‘.’
ZERARAT promote diversified development. i !’I’
BWETE LRSS,  EBA L1
BERREN/NELE - HEthMSE
BERBLETULEE -
The Community Encouraged mutual support among
Chest of Hong family members and maintained
Kong family bonding by participating the
v “2016/2017 New Territories Walk for
=N
BANGES Millions” to raise fund for “Family Y
and Child Welfare Services” social ©
welfare agencies. Mr. Pang acted as
the event co-chairman.
28 THREREEHIT2016/2017, &
ATHEE "REMZERANRE A
SRAERE - USBRERSRERT
ERBEANERRERR - ZELER
SEBEEERE o
Pok Oi Hospital Participated the “2017 Shanghai
s ER Commercial Bank Pok Oi Cycle for
RRER Millions” to promote cycling in Hong @ (]
Kong and advocate green living
style
2R T EBXEEEERELT
2017, LHEEERBEHEFHNES
RIRAESE ©
Yuen Long District | Sponsored the “10K Street Running ’
Sports Association | Love Challenge” to promote sports n'.’
jTEEH Eﬁggg and healthy life .‘ .‘"a‘ '
®E TOKEHEERNE , LU D N
BT REL - Ny
We Like Hong Participated in events to support the (%) Q
Kong Limited sharing platform "WE LIKE HK"
created by the industries
SEEFLIFERBBUTNDZ
& TWE LIKE HK 4
SKWNDB Sponsored the “2016 King of The
Organization World Dragon Boat Competition”
GEEEEREANS | B T2016FEERAPRES - H#A
EIEEE,
Strategic CSR Supported the elderly by sponsoring
Network Limited events like “Lunar New Year Home v
AR B B nganlng and" Lunar New Year “:‘.‘.
visits to elderly N ’
BRAT eee . NI G
B TREERDNE, R TRER N N ]
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Awards and Achievements S TE B pR R

The Group has attained considerable awards for the BZE2017H3A3 1 L EEEEEERDEIE » Hh
year ended 31 March 2017. Amongst those the “Social HEPLHEFERN (e oYsgs TS

Caring Enterprise Excellence Award” by Social o . N
E S TR XHFHERE  ARERE Bt
Enterprise Research Institute which assured the perfor- EREERTRA » FRORR - RRER © At

mance of the Group in the scope of employee benefits, BREEESHE LATIFHIES -

support to environmental protection, promotion of
community services, and value creation to the society.

B 5% % W]

fi ivan

“Chinese Medicine Award” by Hong Kong Chinese
Medicine Industry Association

“Social Caring Enterprise Excellence Award” S s i e e T B (23 48 CZS |
by Social Enterprise Research Institute ) o

BHECXMAMER "HEEBMR AR

“Consumer’s Most Favourable Hong Kong Brands” by
China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association (Overseas)

"GCCA 100% FK Branding Award" by EFECSDREEEHEED DAL - SERE
Greater China Corporation Association

BERPETHEOERASRE " APEQIAEERMAE
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4) Corporate Governance

The Group’s corporate governance policies are based
on the “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” as required by Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange which is committed
to promoting a corporate culture of trustworthiness,
professional ethics and business integrity. The Group's
corporate values, missions and strategies are integrated
with ethical business practices; also the collaboration
with customers, suppliers and employees are also
based on this corporate culture. The Board and
management at all levels strictly undertake these
important responsibilities at both individual and
corporate level.

Code of Conduct
The Group has established Code of Conduct for the
employees. The Board adopts the provision in the
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Report of the
Directors” in the annual report as the basis for the
Code of Conduct.

The Code is applicable to both management person-
nel and general staff within the Group, and has been
clearly communicated to all employees, including the
new staff. The Code of Conduct mainly covers these
three categories:

- Requesting for, receiving or providing benefits;

- Conflict of interest; and

- Confidentiality of information

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly requires all employees to abide by
local regulations, perform duties with integrity, and
prohibit acceptance and offer of benefits. Anti-corrup-
tion policy has been established and included in the
Code of Conduct. During the Period, the Group did not
identify any legal violation or complaint related to
corruption.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mecha-
nism to handle misconduct under the supervision of
the Group’s Chairman, Managing Director and the
representatives of the Audit Committee.

Employees are allowed to report and submit evidence
of the suspected or confirmed misconduct to the
Group’s Chairman and/or Managing Director and/or an
Audit Committee representative in verbal or written
form (either anonymous or bearing a name), and
thereafter the Group shall carry out internal investiga-
tion. In case of violation of the laws, the Group shall
follow procedure to file to the relevant authority.
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5) Employment

The Group has formulated employment policies and
guidelines that are in accordance to the local regula-
tions, and complies with the labour laws and related
regulations listed in the PRC, Hong Kong and other
business regions. The Group currently does not
employ personnel below 18 years old and has never
engaged forced labour. The Group also assures that
no employee’s salary is paid lower than the legal
minimum wage level as defined in the government
regulations of all judicial regions. During the Period,
the Group did not identify any legal violation regarding
employment of child labour or forced labour, and did
not identify or receive any legal violation or complaint
regarding discrimination or recruitment.

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group provides equal opportunity for each
employee and is committed to eliminate any discrimi-
nation against gender, race, family background, age
and disability, etc. during recruitment and job
placement. The Group hires and promotes employees
based on their capabilities and performance.

During recruitment, the Group checks identification
documents according to the local laws for avoidance of
child labour recruitment and prevention of forced
labour engagement. In case of child labour and/or
forced labour, the Group’s shall terminate the employ-
ment immediately. For other illegal incident, the Group
shall file the case to the local enforcement agencies.

The Group shall proceed in compliance with the local
employment regulations in case of termination on
employment.

Retirement

Despite the mandatory retirement policy in place, the
Group will not refuse to consider applicants who are
near retirement age but still want to continue to work
after retirement. For each application of this category,
the Group shall evaluate the relevant staff’s individual
situation, competence, past job performance and the
Group’s retirement policy, in order to prevent age
discrimination.

Wages and Welfare

The Group’s wages and welfare policy is based on
local industry norms which shall be appropriately
adjusted according to work performance, experience
and qualification of the employee. Employee’s working
hours, holidays, and other benefits are based on the
common practices of the local industry and reasonably
adjusted based on the employee’s experience and
seniority. The Group adopts key performance indica-
tors as one of the criteria for defining the employee
incentive scheme.

As of 31 March 2017, there were 62 full-time employees in
Hong Kong whose distribution was depicted as follows- :
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6) Health and Safety

The Group has been striving to provide a safe, healthy and
comfortable working environment by ensuring that the
workplace has adequate lighting and ventilation systems and is
always kept clean and tidy with sufficient work space. The
Group maintains safety conditions of equipment and installs
firefighting facilities in accordance with the local laws and
provides security measures to prevent unauthorized persons
from entering and leaving the Group's operating areas.

The Group provides safety training for new employees and
provides relevant occupational safety and health training based
on the job nature of employees. This includes provision of
employees with information about the laws and regulations in
occupational health & safety for employees’ understanding of
such importance.

During the Period, the Group did not identify any violation
against the local regulations in occupational health and safety,
and did not identify any fatality or lost work hours resulting from
work-related accidents.

7)Employee Training and Development

The Group believes staff quality is an important factor for
maintaining growth and improving profitability, whilst the level of
service and product quality are closely related to employee
training and development. Therefore, the Group strives to
allocate resources for implementation of effective training
system:

+ Orientation training for new employee(s);
* Regular relevant training sessions for existing employees; and
+ Training sessions conducted by internal or external qualified

personnel

Scope of training covers product knowledge, sales techniques,
quality control, as well as and the latest laws and regulations
that may have possible impact to business operations. This not
only enables employees to acquire the latest information or
skills, but also enhances their self-confidence and increases
their sense of belonging. Assessment would be conducted after
training to evaluate the effectiveness and to follow up on the
skill development of employees.

During the Period, the relevant training and development
figures for Hong Kong area were depicted as follows:

Average monthly percentage of

trained employees (%,
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8) Supply Chain Management

The Group strives for partnering with suppliers who share the
same business philosophy in running business at a fair, honest
and diligent manner. When selecting suppliers, the Group also
evaluates environmental, social and governance factors in
addition to the commercial and quality issues.

Apart from requesting the supplied products (including packag-
ing materials) are free from any toxic substances, the Group
also sets the standards of conduct in the procurement contracts
to encourage suppliers to share the same vision with the
Group. The scope of the standard of conduct shall include the
governance aspects of environmental protection and social
responsibility:

- Ensure that suppliers and their upstream entities do not force
employees to work in any form of violence or threat and do not
employ child labour;

- Employment is solely based on working performance and not
affected by any discrimination against race, gender, age,
disability, sexual orientation or marital status;

- Salary is paid in fair value and all other entitled benefits;

- Safe and healthy working environment shall be provided in
compliance with the local laws;

+ Business decisions shall adhere to the principle of sustainable
development. Business processes shall comply with the local
regulations on environmental protection; and

- Integration of the business and organization into the circum-
stances of the community

The Group also encourages suppliers to achieve certification
for management systems (Including but not limited to ISO
9001, ISO 14001, SA 8000, and ISO 22000). In addition, the
Group shall regularly evaluate the performance of suppliers for
defining strategies of continuous improvement.

As at 31 March 2017, the geographical distribution of suppliers
were mainly located within the regions of Greater China and
South East Asia.

9) Product Responsibility

Since the Group launches its own brands and acts as agency of
personal care and health products for international brands,
there is strict control in product quality. The scope of this report
has adopted ISO 9001 quality management system to assure
effective procedures and processes are adopted for production
of excellent and safe products. Upon receipt of materials,
quality inspection process is clearly defined and implemented
according to the relevant regulations. Each batch of products
shall only be formally released after it passed the inspection.
The Group also regularly monitors the production and quality
inspection procedures of the suppliers for verifying and confirm-
ing the suppliers’ capabilities in provision of compliant and safe
products to the Group.

The Group has established the crisis management team for
handling emergency issues and defining emergency instruction
for remediation of any issues and potential risks incurred from
product safety.

Fair Promotional Information

The Group requires staff to provide true and accurate product
and service information to customers when selling the
products. Customer service hotline was set up for responding
customer enquiries before purchasing and after-sales services.
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Handling of Customer Complaints

Being a responsible supplier of health and personal care
products, the scope of this report has handled all matters
relating to product quality in accordance with the 1ISO 9001
procedures, including customer complaints about product
quality

+ When receiving customer’s complaint or request for goods

return, initial reply to customer will be given within the time
frame specified in the procedure;

+ The Group’s customer service representative or sales team will

resolve the complaint through phone, online or in person; and

+ Serious complaints will be followed up by the crisis manage-

ment team

During the Period, the Group did not identify any customer
complaints or violations against the relevant regulations in
product responsibility, and no product was recalled for the
reasons of safety and health concerns amongst all products
sold.

Management of Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights managed by the Group mainly cover
its own-branded products registered in the business regions. To
protect the rights of the registered brands, the Group allocates
resources to uphold confidential information like product
specifications. The server storing such information is equipped
with firewall which restricts access from external systems.
Users are required to log in with passwords and are allowed to
access the authorized information only.

Apart from protecting own intellectual property rights, the Group
respects the intellectual property rights of the others and will not

use third party’s intellectual property without prior authorization.

Maintenance of Customer Information

Although the Group's direct customers are mainly enterprises,
their information is strictly handled in the same manner as
dealing with personal privacy. The Group bases on the
“Personal Data Protection (Privacy) Ordinance Cap. 486
(“Ordinance”) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
its own Privacy Policy, which ensures all collected, stored,
transmitted or used personal/corporate information are handled
according to the requirements specified by the Ordinance. The
Group’s management and staff maintain confidentiality and
properly retain all personal/corporate information collected,
stored, transmitted or used by the Group.
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10) Environmental Protection

The Group upholds environmental protection as corporate
culture and recognizes the operational impact on the environ-
ment as an indispensable element in the decision-making
process. The Group is committed to comply with all applicable
local environmental regulations and other related requirements
for promoting sustainable development and preventing environ-
mental pollution.

(a) Control of Emission

Although the operations do not discharge industrial effluents,
the Group strives to identify sources of greenhouse gases
(GHG) for defining the appropriate resolution to reduce
emission, including reduction of GHG emission sources,
improvement in efficiency of related processes with GHG
emissions, reduction in use of gasoline and increase in use of
more environmental-friendly fuels, etc.

The Group's current emission reduction measures include the
use of the EU 5 trucks across the board, adoption of detailed
inventory plan to reduce the number of shipments in procure-
ment, and maximization in the use of waterway transport.

Greenhouse Gas
Emission Volume
(Tonne carbon dioxide equivalent)

Greenhouse Gas

Emission Volume

(Tonne carbon dioxide equivalent)
SRE AR
(S LiER)

48.85

Total Annual Consumption

2FEREE

17,622

Diesel Consumption (Litre)

SHFEE(AT)

(b) Waste Disposal
During product design and sales planning, the Group adopts
the principle of waste reduction through innovative product
design, supply chain management, and waste recycling. The
Group does not generate hazardous wastes from its current
operations and collected approximately 2,000 kilograms of
non-hazardous wastes during the Period.

Recyclable materials are placed at the specified recycling
locations, for instance the waste carton boxes would be
handed over to the recycling agencies. As regards, employ-
ees are encouraged to engage in double-sided photocopying
and single-sided used papers are collected for reuse in order
to reduce wastage. Apart from daily operations, the Group
also implemented emission reduction measures to reduce
landfills, such as recycling of leftovers and kitchen wastes
collected from the anniversary dinner which will be used to
produce fertilizer and feeds as well as to discourage the use
of disposable tableware.

REREIINE
(B SLikE ®)

130.01

TotalAnnual Consumption

EERRE

Power Consumption of
Operational Facilities (kWh)

EE R R B (T ELA)
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(c) Use of Resources

In addition to the efforts for reducing emissions, the Group has
also taken appropriate measures to conserve natural resources
for environmental protection. The Group's conservation
measures are mainly conveyed through energy management.

The Group adopts both administrative practices and equipment
installation for energy conservation as well as requesting staff
to turn off the air conditioning and lighting during lunch time and
after work hours. The new office situated in Tsim Sha Tsui has
been fully equipped with LED lights, which help to save energy
of 11.62 kWh per day as compared to the energy-saving light
bulbs in the Yuen Long office.

For utilization of water, our operations do not consume
significant amount of water and the major water consumption is
general office usage. The Group is aware of scarcity of water
resources and educates employees to save water.

Total Annual
Consumption

EFERE

Electricity

(kWh)
(FEEEF)

Consumption Intensity
per shipment unit : 1.41

BHEEMNERTE : 1.41

(d) Environment and the Natural Resources

To protect environment and enhance the utilization rate of
natural resources, the Group has included the elements of
environmental protection and sustainable development in its
operations. Through supply chain management, the Group
encourages suppliers to cooperate, jointly promote and adopt
good environmental management measures, as well as to
assess suppliers’ operations for continuous monitoring and
improvement of environmental performance.

The Group is also actively implementing green office manage-
ment, for example use of ERP management system to promote
the use of electronic files. For paper printing, the Group
supports the use of Forest Stewardship Council certified paper
(“FSC paper”), the current FSC paper consumption accounted
for 96% of the total paper consumption.

In addition, the Group organises employee trainings and
seminars to promote environmental awareness and responsi-
bilities to suppliers and other stakeholders. Since April 2016,
the number of people who attended such seminars accounted
for 37% of the total employees in Hong Kong.

During the Period, the Group did not identify any violation or
complaint against the relevant environmental regulations.

(c) EIRER
BRYBESE SEURIEERERSERRE
R BEILRERE - RENSHOBREEEERER
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EEPUTHRF AR R EREEM S EERER
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LEDS @ EL@ T TRA AT I se et - 8K
AEE11.62EE o

EREREESE » BFINEBALEREFRLK
ERFKEDNFE—BRARR - FEFRFKER
WER - BB ETENAK

Total Annual
Consumption

EFERE

Water

o/

(cubic metre)
(ILTFK)

Consumption Intensity ‘ ‘
per shipment unit : 0.001

BHERMMEREE : 0.001
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Reference to Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

A1 Emissions 10a. Control of Emission
A1.1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data 10a. Control of Emission
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 10a. Control of Emission
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity 10b. Waste Disposal
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 10b. Waste Disposal
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved 10a. Control of Emission
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved 10b. Waste Disposal
A2 Use of Resources 10c. Use of Resources
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity 10c. Use of Resources
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 10c. Use of Resources
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 10c. Use of Resources
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives 10c. Use of Resources

and results achieved

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to per unit produced Not Reported
A.3  Environment and Natural Resources 10d. Environment and Natural Resources
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and the 10d. Environment and Natural Resources

actions taken to manage them

B.1  Employment 5. Employment

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region 5. Employment

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region Not Reported

B.2 Health and Safety 6. Health and Safety
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 6. Health and Safety

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury . Health and Safety

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are implemented and monitored . Health and Safety

N O O

B.3 Development and Training . Employee Training and Development

~

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category . Employee Training and Development

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category 7. Employee Training and Development

B.4 Labour Standards 5. Employment

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour 5. Employment

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 5. Employment

B.5 Supply Chain Management 8. Supply Chain Management

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Partially Reported

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are being 8. Supply Chain Management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored

B.6 Product Responsibility 9. Product Responsibility

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons 9. Product Responsibility

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with 9. Product Responsibility

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights 9. Product Responsibility

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures 9. Product Responsibility

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented and monitored 9. Product Responsibility

B.7 Anti-corruption 4. Corporate Governance

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees 4. Corporate Governance

during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are implemented and monitored 4. Corporate Governance

w

B.8 Community Investment . Community Service

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution

w

. Community Service

w

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area . Community Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Group strive to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate sound
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
system from time to time so as to ensure Shareholders’ expectations
are met.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the below deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Pang Siu Hin, is both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view
of the fact that Mr. Pang is one of the co-founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group effectively since
1996, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Pang taking up both roles for effective management and
business development with his profound knowledge and experience
in the industry. The Board therefore considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is reasonably justified under such
circumstances.

Code Provision F.1.1

Under the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
engages Ms. Wong Ting Dan as Company Secretary during the
Period. Ms. Wong is a practicing solicitor and in performing her
duties as the Company Secretary of the Company, she reports to the
Board and maintains contacts with the chief executive officer of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and reports to them at
general meetings. All Directors are required to pursue excellence in
the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his/her fiduciary duties by
applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard
in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises a total of eight Directors including
three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board members for the
Period and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Managing Director

(Appointed on 4 July 2016)

Ms. Kwan Lai Man
Dr. Dong Meixian

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Appointed on 4 July 2016)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung

EENEFRS
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Mr. Pang Siu Hin, the Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai
Man. Save as disclosed, there is not any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship), among the Directors.

Board Diversity

We believe diversity of the Board helps foster different perspectives
and the existing Board composition means that the Board would be
more alert to different opportunities and risks. Board diversity leads
to a greater knowledge based, more creativity and innovation within
the Board. This helps us to better understand the varied needs of our
customers, which in turn results in a further multiplicity of customers,
a richer and more extensive customer base and more opportunities
to grow. During the Period, the Board has been diversified in terms of
professional experience, industry experience and gender.

Board Meetings

During the Period, the Company held 4 board meetings, the AGM on
9 September 2016, one extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”)
on 23 June 2016, two audit committee meetings on 28 June 2016
and 17 November 2016, respectively, two remuneration committee
meetings on 28 June 2016 and 3 October 2016, respectively and
one nomination committee meeting on 28 June 2016. Details of each
Director’s attendance in the aforesaid meetings are set out below.

AR B

ZOTEE(ERE) REABEL T 2K
BRAEWEEESN  ER 2 AT AL ARS
R(BEUE Bm%E RBEXIHEMER
FAHIRER) -

EXEZ it

BPBREEZFEZTLEPRBEETRNE
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RBRHNEE EFELTLIRRESTSAN
AR RHEREZNRIENMEF &
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MBEZIAANEFPER FEERERZ
M PERME Z a8 - RAHR
EEeaEX TELRIMENAGBESZT
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RABE ARAIRIT4RESTEEE ]
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BAXE ) »RIHN201656528H 2016
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ARITZ - ARELZERSH BHSES
HE L gR o FBHImT -

Number of meetings attended/entitled to attend

EHEGE HHHRIRZAY

Regular Audit Remuneration  Nomination

full Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee
Directors meetings meetings meetings meeting AGM EGM

EH2E #NEEe FHZRE ReEZRE
E¥ EFEEH L] L] B REEFXE RRBIXE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Pang Siu Hin 2 b 44 NATER N/A T3 A N/A i A 1 11
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZLL 44 NATER 2/2 11 11 11
Dr. Dong Meixian (Note () BXILEL (i) 22  NATEE  NATEE NATEAR  NATER  NATER

TE-LFFR
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Number of meetings attended/entitled to attend

BHERE AHHFERZAR

Regular Audit Remuneration  Nomination

full Board Committee

Committee ~ Committee

Directors meetings meetings meetings meeting AGM EGM
Eij28 ENZERE FHERE ReEAg

Ex ExEER -1 ] gl g8 BRREAEXE RBREWIKE

Non-executive Directors ERITER

Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERTT 44 NATEE NATEE NATER 1A 11

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note(i)) RETEE (FEH) 22  NATEE NATEE NATER NATER  NATER

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTESE

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FRkEE 4/4 2/2 22 1/1 1/1 1/1

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HEaEt 4/4 2/2 22 1/1 11 11

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung REELE 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1 11

Notes: B 5T

() Dr. Dong Meixian was appointed as executive Director on 4 July 2016. 0] B IELR2016F7 A4HEZ L EHITE
=

(i) Mr. Yuen Chi Ping was appointed as non-executive Director on 4 July 2016. (i) =& FALER20165F7 A48 EZ T AIENTT
5=

The Board and the Management EESHEEE

The Board is responsible for the overall conduct of the Group,
formulating Group policies and business directions, and monitoring
risk management, internal controls and performance of the
management. The Board delegates and gives clear directions to the
Management as to their powers and circumstances in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior the Board approval.

EXE2ARARENERTE HIERER
RREBIR AREREARERE NS
EREEENRR EXeREEEELH
BETEEENERAMNEEERAES
EERAFENEESTSHENBR -
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Delegation by the Board

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense upon making request to the Board.

Executive Directors delegate some day-to-day management,
administration and operation to the senior management. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full
support of the executive Directors and the senior management for
the discharge of its responsibilities.

Management for the purpose of this corporate governance
report includes the executive Directors, senior management and
departmental heads. They are responsible for the day-to-day
operations, management and administration of the Group under
the leadership of the executive Directors. They also execute and
implement strategies and directions determined by the Board.

Members of our management are frequently invited to attend the
Board meetings to report and engage in discussions with the Board
in respect of strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates to ensure that the Board has a general understanding of the
Group’s business and to enable them to make informed decisions for
the benefit of the Group. They are required to answer any questions
or challenges posed by the Board.

In addition to regular Board meetings, monthly management
meetings were held to review, discuss and make decisions on
financial and operational matters.
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Board Meetings and Board Procedural Matters

The Board meets regularly and has formal procedures to include
matters to be referred to it for consideration and decisions at the
Board meetings. The formal notice and agenda of meetings are
usually sent to all Directors at least 14 days before each meeting
and they are consulted and given an opportunity to comment on the
agenda.

Meeting materials are usually sent to Directors in advance of each
meeting to ensure that the Directors have full and timely access to
relevant information. With a view to becoming more environment-
friendly by reducing paper consumption, meeting materials are
distributed in electronic form and Directors are encouraged to read
the electronic version.

Draft minutes recording substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at the meetings are circulated to all Directors for their
comments (if any) within a reasonable time (generally within seven
business days) of each meeting. The final version of the minutes
is approved at the subsequent meeting and a copy is sent to the
Directors for their records. The final executed version is placed on
record and made available for inspection.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular Board
meetings a year. During the Period, four regular full Board meetings
were convened:

1. approved the appointment of the Directors and grant of share
option;

2. reviewed and approved the 2015/16 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

3. reviewed and approved the 2016/17 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcements and

documents;

4. reviewed the operational and financial reports of the Group;
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5. formulated business development strategies and approved the
budget for the financial year;

6. discussed and considered recommendations made by the
board committees;

7. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s affairs,
including strategic plans, financial affairs, progress and updates
of business performance, and budget summary/proposals; and

8. reviewed the effectiveness of corporate governance practices,
internal control and risk management.

For the period between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, the
Company at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board and it exceeds the parameters of the CG Code.

Independence

We have strong elements of independence on the Board, providing
independent and objective opinions on strategic issues and
performance matters as well as extensive expertise, experience and
insight of each Director to the integration of the Board. The Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine
on the independence of Directors. The Board determines that the
Directors do not have any direct or indirect material relationship
with the Group. Furthermore, the Company has received an annual
confirmation from each of its independent non-executive Directors
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Professional
Development

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance with and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors in maintaining their training record.

All the Directors have confirmed that they participated in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as Directors during the Period.

The below chart summarises the participation of Directors in training
and continuous professional development during the Period under
review.

ARABBEESBEXERRE N
T UNBERLEFENB N - ARFE
B EIREA R EEFHE S EET
ZRCEE ©

FMIBESERBEANAHH 2 EFEFTE
BRABERYEFEE/EFTNHANB LK

4k,
BE °

TRBLME R O BERRE A2 08 9 Rk
BEXERNER-

Types of Continuous Professional Development

FESERRAR
Reading Material regarding
regulatory update and
corporate governance Attending seminars/
Name of Directors matters conferences/forums
FREREEENR HEHRE
EEn4 LEERFEZCHEH gl aiE
Executive Directors RITES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 2k p 4 4
Ms. Kwan Lai Man WEZRT v %
Dr. Dong Meixian EX L v
Non-executive Directors ERTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERLT v v
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping RETEE 4 v
Independent non-executive Directors BUKBRTES
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu TRk v v
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HEREL v v
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung R E v 4
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has been maintaining an adequate Directors’ and
officers’ (‘D&0”) Liability Insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against the Directors and officers since the
Company went listed. To ensure sufficient and appropriate insurance
cover is in place, we review the Company’s D&O insurance policy
annually based on recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The Insurance Policy is available for inspection by
the Directors upon request. As at today’s date, no claim has been
made since the Insurance Policy came into effect.

Deed of Non-Competition

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the deed of non-competition
dated 25 September 2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
was executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the
Company. Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition,
Mr. Pang, Mrs. Pang and the Controlling Shareholders have jointly
and severally undertaken that they would not engage in any business
or manufacturing any products which are in competition with those
of the Group. The Company’s independent non-executive Directors
will review, at least on annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates on their existing or future competing
business.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their common law duty
to act in the best interests of the Company and Shareholders as
a whole. Any perceived, potential or actual conflicts of interest
between the Group and its Directors are to be avoided. The Directors
are requested to disclose their interests, if any, in any transaction,
arrangement or other proposal to be considered by the Board at
Board meetings, and abstain from voting if any conflicts of interest
arise or where they become aware of any perceived or potential
conflicts of interest. All declared interests are properly recorded and
made accessible by the Board members. Directors have a continuing
duty to inform the Board of any changes to these conflicts.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Pang serves as the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. The reasons have been explained in the section headed
“Compliance with Corporate Governance Code” of this annual report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (INCLUDING
INEDs)

Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) (including independent
non-executive Directors (‘INEDs”)) make a positive contribution to
the development of the Group’s strategy and policies and scrutinise
the Group’s performance through informed insight and independent
judgement. They constructively challenge the management, which is
vital to fulfill the objectives set out by the Board. In order to preserve
well-balanced governance, the Board has ensured that all members
of the Audit Committee are INEDs, majority of the members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are INEDs, and that each
committee is chaired by an INED.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All our non-executive Directors (including INEDs) are appointed
for a term of three years and are required to offer themselves for
re-election at the first AGM following their appointments. Under the
Articles of Association of the Company, at least one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM at least
once every three years. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election
at the AGM at which he or she retires. We confirm that all Directors’
appointments and re-elections were conducted in compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the CG Code for the
period under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to enhance
the function of the Board, the Board has established the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s affairs
under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Board Committees are discussed below.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things to review and monitor the Group’s relationship with
the external auditors and the auditors’ independence; monitor the
integrity of the Group’s financial information and review significant
reporting judgments contained in it; oversee the Group’s financial
reporting and review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and consider major investigation findings
on internal control matters and management’s response to these
findings.

As at 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee consisted of three
members who are the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Period, the Audit Committee convened two meetings and
performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2015/16 annual report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed the 2016/17 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

3.  reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditors, taking into account its independence;
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4. reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

5. approved terms of engagement including the remuneration of
the external auditors and audit service plan;

6. assessed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control systems; and

7. reviewed and discussed the internal control review projects
conducted by the Internal Audit function, including:

i. internal audit function and progress;

ii.  significant internal audit findings and follow-up remediation
status;

ii.  annual internal audit planning memorandum; and

iv. ~ major investigation findings on internal controls and
management’s response to those findings.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under its
terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required, among
other things, to review, determine and make recommendation to the
Board on the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee has also taken into account a number
of relevant factors such as remuneration packages offered by
companies of comparable business and scale, market practices, and
the financial and non-financial performance of the Group to ensure
that the remuneration packages offered remain appropriate and
competitive.

No individual Director or senior management approves his or her own
remuneration.
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As at 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members, namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr.
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Tsui Nam Hung.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee convened 2
meetings and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

2. reviewed the remuneration of the Directors.
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its term of reference, the Nomination Committee is, among other
things, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and the management of the Board
succession; to make recommendations to the Board for potential
Board members; to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; and to assess the independence of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee consisted of four
members, namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang
Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
2. assessed the independence of INEDs;

3. nominated suitable and qualified individual for directorships;
and

4.  made recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for the
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

During the Period under review, the Board as a whole is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties including:

1)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the CG Code and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s independent external auditors is HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited. The roles and responsibilities of our external
auditors are stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

60

EERBAE

REEMEAR 28EFE

BETREEAR

Bhat 2B E:

1)

HE LB ARB 2 EEERBERK

BEHREOESSRLER:

2) RIMEREENEREEAE ZIE
NRIFEEEERE

3) B MERAQNREETEENES
BEFTAZBEERER:

4 HlE BRIMEREENEETMNLE

STRIRARFM(0E) R

5 BFAAAREBIFOLESTRZBERER
TEERRENZIEE-

BB £

ARBZ BN RBMREE SN E
BRARAR - BRASNIZBENRE R E

E&FINIBL

G =

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oE Jig R an

The remuneration paid or payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng #ZE201743H31H [FF[E - LA & 516D
Limited in respect of the audit services and non audit services for FEHFT AR R 8BRS M IEBZRBE M

year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows: ENSENMENT
2017 2016
Fee paid/ Fee paid/
payable payable
gft BMNBA B ENER
Nature of services HK$’000 HK$’000
R¥ME BETRT BT T
Audit services EIZARTE 750 700
Non-audit services EEZ R
— Review services — R 150 150
Total =0 900 850
Directors’ Accountability and Auditing EEFEREKH

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the ZFHFEEBERENEEHE20174F3H31
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended H IFFEREGRE T BE®RE  LEE R FRER
31 March 2017 to reflect a true and fair view of the Group’s financial ~ AN & B R2017F3 431 H &8 A5 & K7
position as at 31 March 2017 and of its results and cash flows for the ~ BAAH) A BHIR &7

Period.
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In preparing of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017, the generally accepted accounting principles
in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent
use of appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the effective conduct
of meetings and that proper procedures are followed (including
organising meetings, preparing agendas and the written resolutions
or minutes, collating and distributing meeting materials, and keeping
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved
at the meetings). She also advises the Board on compliance and
corporate governance matters (including updating the Board on
any legal and regulatory changes and facilitating the induction and
professional development of the Directors).

The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at all times. Ms. Wong has confirmed that she has
attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Period. She resigned on 1 July 2017. Ms. Polien Kho has
been appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 1 July
2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM™)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together with
their names and contact information to the Board by addressing
them to the head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1213-1215, 12/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by e-mail to
contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Constitutional Documents

During the Period, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The updated version of
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board, the Board committees and the external
auditors will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all Shareholders before the annual general meeting and any
extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquires.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. The Board acknowledged that the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board places great importance on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and has ultimate responsibilities for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group'’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
is also responsible for overseeing in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board is committed to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Audit Committee
oversees the systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group and continuously communicates any significant matters to the
Board.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
phases:

° Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio according to such analysis; and

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and ongoing monitor the residual
risks.

Such framework provides a systematic approach to risk
management process, which is embedded in the system of internal
controls as an integral part of corporate governance. The risk
management framework helps sustain business success, creates
value for stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its
corporate governance responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the Group. The Risk
Management framework is aligned with the Committee of the
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
Internal Control — Integrated Framework. The components of the
framework are as follows:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for internal control across the
Group;

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to
the achievement of objectives are carried out;
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° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is in place and
functions.

The management takes direct risk management responsibilities as
risk owners.

Risk Assessment

During the year, management of the Company: 1) conducted risk
assessment to identify, filter and prioritize the key risks faced by the
Group; 2) established a risk register to document the Group’s key
risks and their respective risk levels; and 3) identified the mitigating
measures for the identified key risks, and the person-in-charge to
monitor and follow up the implementation progress of the mitigating
measures.

Moreover, there are top eight priority risks which have been identified
under four categories: 1) business and strategic risk; 2) operational
risk; 3) regulatory compliance risk; and 4) financial & reporting risk.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is an independent and
objective body, which performs the Group’s internal audit function
and directly reports to the Audit Committee and the Board at least
annually. The manager of IAD has a direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Board.

The IAD has an unlimited access to reviewing the Group’s activities,
internal control, risk management, and corporate governance related
issues. One of the functions is to assist the Board in independently
assessing the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
systems, risk management process, and more importantly seeking
continuous improvement.
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To align with the Group’s growth and latest business developments,
the IAD will always review its adequacy and competency of
knowledge and attend corresponding workshops and/or seminars
whenever thinks fit.

Internal Audit Activities

The IAD has adopted a risk-management based approach in
developing the annual internal audit planning memorandum, which
corresponds to the risk management framework. Risk assessment,
which is regarded as a major and dynamic process, is performed
on a regular basis so as to identify, prioritize and scope business
activities and simultaneously cover business activities with significant
risks across the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and approves
the annual internal audit planning memorandum. In each individual
audit assignment, significant risk areas such as finance, operation,
compliance and fraud risk would further be assessed in order to
evaluate internal control effectiveness and the mitigation efforts made
by the management.

All audit findings and corresponding recommendations on control
deficiencies of each audit assignment would be well communicated
to the management, who needs to initiate any remedial actions to
correct those control deficiencies within a reasonable period of time.
Subsequent reviews are purposefully done to monitor whether those
remedial actions have been performed right on time and correctly.
Significant deficiencies of individual assignment are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Through the ongoing reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
management’s awareness of some key operational processes, the
IAD discharges its duties of performing audit assignment on those
areas on an ad hoc basis if necessary.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company’s
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Audit
Committee oversees the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group and continuously communicates any significant
matters to the Board. The IAD has submitted its internal control
review reports for the Group to the Audit Committee and the Board
in November 2016. Findings and recommendations concerning
improvements to the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board considered that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate during the Period under review.

The Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience and training programs of
the Group’s IAD and accounting and financial reporting staff
and considered that staffing is adequate. All staff has sufficient
competence to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

Findings and recommendations concerning improvements to
the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board considered the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system of the Group,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget, are effective and adequate,
and have complied with provisions of the CG Code during the
Period.
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The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing, selling
and distributing a wide variety of personal care products (mainly
consisting of bath and shower gels, shampoos and conditioners,
and skin care products), healthcare products (mainly consisting of
health supplements including but not limited to child specific milk
supplements, dietary supplements, appetising teas, nutritive drinks,
cough and cold remedies, herbal teas and medicated oils) and
household products (mainly consisting of laundry detergents and
antiseptic germicides) under various brands. Details of principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. There has been no significant
change in the principal business of the Group during the Period.
The segment information of the operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 including a fair review of the business and discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, and the environmental
policies and performance of the Group are set out in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report”, “Five Years Financial Summary”, and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” sections of this
Annual Report.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. Event affecting the Group occurred since the end of
the financial year is set out in note 38 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING AND
PLACING

The shares of the Company became listed on the Stock Exchange
on 16 October 2014. The offer price was HK$1.18 per share and
200,000,000 Shares were allotted. The net proceeds from the Listing
was approximately HK$217.3 million after deducting underwriting
fees and related expenses.

As at 31 March 2017, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilized
as follows:
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Balance of
the Proceeds
as at
19 February Proceeds
2016 used Balance
FRERRA#ES
Use of proceeds FERERE 20165
As at 31 March 2017 #20173A31H 2A19A ERABERE -]
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTL BEATL BEATL
Exploring business collaboration SREFmBEEEALZ
opportunities with new brand proprietors E¥BeEke 2.0 1.4 0.6
Expanding the sales and distribution network B A4 & & 2 $ 4848 241 8.1 16.0
Expanding the product portfolio BAEMMAE 1.3 0.9 0.4
Expanding the manufacturing arm of BRASEMREEBLR
the Group and exploring RRBITESREES
opportunities in health industry 415 - 415
Acquiring commercial property in REBUEEEDEURE
Hong Kong to use as Group’s own Office AEEEGNER 80.0 80.0 -
General working capital —ReEES 8.7 8.7 -
157.6 99.1 58.5

As at 31 March 2017, the unused net proceeds were placed with
banks in Hong Kong as short-term deposits.

OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 100 of this annual report. The
details of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 103 and note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “2017 Final
Dividend”) with a sum of approximately HK$10,887,800, which
is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2017
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 8
September 2017 (the “AGM”). The 2017 Final Dividend will be
distributed on or about Tuesday, 10 October 2017 to Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 19 September 2017.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movement in the investment property of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of the subsequent event are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 5 September 2017 to Friday, 8 September
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 September
2017.

Subject to the approval of the proposed 2017 Final Dividend by the
Shareholders at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 15 September 2017 to Tuesday, 19
September 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered for ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed 2017 Final Dividend. In order to
qualify for the proposed 2017 Final Dividend, all transfer of Shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share register in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 14 September 2017.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Friday, 8 September
2017 and the notice of AGM will be published and despatched to
Shareholders of the Company in due course.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 208 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Period are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2017 were approximately HK$714.7 million. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to the provisions
of memorandum of association of the Company or the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share
premium account may be applied to pay distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date of
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed Shares of the Company during the Period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Period amounted to
approximately HK$802,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Period:

Sales

— the largest customer 18.3%
— the five largest customers 42.6%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 32.4%
— the five largest suppliers 55.1%

During the Period, all the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers were independent third parties. Save and except for
Brighten Hong Limited (#4181 THFR A R]) , a company owned by Mr.
Pang’s brother-in-law, which was the fifth largest customer for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, or any of the associates or
any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold over
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had any beneficial
interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group noted
above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Period were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Dr. Dong Meixian (appointed on 4 July 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (appointed on 4 July 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the
number required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the
CG Code also stipulates that each Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Mr. Pang Siu Hin, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
will be retired at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will be
available for re-election as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three independent non-executive Directors pursuant with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them are independent.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 26 to 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service
contract is for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the Company or the
Director giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company under which each of them is
appointed for a period of three years. None of the Directors has or is
proposed to have any service agreement with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@ Long position in Shares
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
EERS 4 FGRIGKE BHERaEIL
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 5,665,000 0.52%
ZONkE ExEAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 3,425,000 0.31%
FoiBiE e (PIEE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation 554,242,000 50.84%
and family interest (Note 2)
REtrE gD kK kg
(HiEE2)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 3,425,000 0.31%
BEZLL EnfEAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,665,000 0.52%
FoiBiEas (PHEE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation 554,242,000 50.84%

and family interest (Note 2)
REEHEERS kR EER

GEY)
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Long position in the underlying shares of the

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. BIEET -

Each of Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by each
other.

Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu i -

Hin and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu
Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are deemed to be interested in the
554,242,000 Shares held by Genwealth under the SFO.

B Wk

Yok sRHBELL 2 RE
Bt T R EE L+
WA AR R
HER -

PTESNBEITEERBESZL
TEEHEBHI0%F10%E S » B -
BIRFES LB KRN Z D075 %
RABZELZTHRARIIERAEN
554,242,0000% B2 15 R B s

b) REQXFAEBEROGFNFR

Company
Number of
Number of underlying
Name of Director Capacity options held shares
EERR 510 FRiSHERRER B +H BRI B% 17 & B
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 9,765,000 9,765,000
ZOLTRE ExEAA
Interest of spouse (Note) 6,405,000 6,405,000
fe (S (FisE)
16,170,000 16,170,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 6,405,000 6,405,000
PR ER L EmEE A
Interest of spouse (Note) 9,765,000 9,765,000
fe (B (FisE)
16,170,000 16,170,000
Note:  Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. Wit: ELOTEEREBERLTZEG-

Each of Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by each
other.

—E-tEER

T

Btk 0 75 R EE L+
WA AR R
HER -
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Long position in Genwealth, an associated
corporation of the Company

RAQXFEBEEITETNER

Approximate
Number of  percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
EENA 21 FriSRE I8 E #BHISKRaE S
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 9,000 90%
TR E E=EAA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 1,000 10%
HAEZ XL E=EAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions therein that they shall
be deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or
any interests or short positions which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

BREXFEBEEEIN MEESHAQAEE
TRABRAR G E AR EE (T&
REHFRHEGEOISEXVER) 2 &% - BRI
MABEEEREREREZS LRSI
EXVELETRSD EBME AN T MB R T2
EEmIOR R (BIEREES KBAE K
BB ESERRAER 2 BEIAR) -
IR B FEF KA BRI FE3521KL AKX R F
BYFEZELRMAZEAERIAR =k
ARE EMRAIM ST FE 2 EEITA
EFHTEFRGIBRETRENE AR
B R R P AR AR ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, so far as it is known to the Directors, the
following persons, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, will have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, who is interested, directly or indirectly, in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the
Group:

B Wk

FTERRRAEAQRRHEBEEZE
B HERO R EERPH

BERKXR

R2017F3A3 1B "HESHMA - U TAL
(WHESHARAETETHAE)BHRA
NAEIRG RE@R D% B REE S KA
BB EXVE B2 X379 58 2 G AR AR
AEENERIAR  KERXEEEEN
HREMARFAEBATEREBEMKE
ARARERE LERENTAERRAEE
10%3% A b2 #E %

Long position in Shares REOHNEFR
Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Shares interest
2| {3 Bin®E #IEVAaSL
Genwealth Beneficial owner 554,242,000 50.84%
1= EnBAEA
Viewforth Limited Beneficial owner (Note) 250,000,000 22.93%
Viewforth Limited EmBEAA (M)
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest in a corporation (Note) 250,000,000 22.93%
ERERERAA EE R (M)
Magnolia Wealth International Limited Interest in a corporation (Note) 250,000,000 22.93%
Magnolia Wealth International Limited EE R (MEE)
Ji Changqgun Interest in a corporation (Note) 250,000,000 22.93%
=) EE R ()
Note: The 250,000,000 Shares are held by Viewforth Limited, a Company which BfsE:  $%250,000,0000% B {5 J5 B 2 5%

is wholly owned by Fullshare Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as
to 46.58% by Magnolia Wealth International Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by Ji Changqun. Ji Changqun also directly owns 4.75% of Fullshare
Holdings Limited.

PERERRAIZEREBEZ DA
Viewforth Limited$§ & - i1 & &% %
% A& B2 2 & FFMagnolia Wealth
International Limited% 46.58%F
2§ » Magnolia Wealth International
LimitedAZEH 2 EHF -T2
HTEERBERIERER QA
4.75% M 5 o
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Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors, there
was no other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2017 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective associates to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company.

B EXPREES REEMA EEM
AL (REFHARAETBTHRAEINRK
Bt AR RARK 1D h A SR R EIRE 1E
A RIEE S R E GG EXVEBE2 %37
MG ARARRIKE - HECER A AR
AREE M B IRDIE336FFE 2 B
Mz ERgKR  REEIEEERWNEE
MARABR NEAREBEE[RKE QA
BRAE ERENTAER R AT E5%
P L

EERERNINEEZER

BRAFHMATIRERSE N Bl E20179F3H31H
IEFEARNEAERE AR F W EREAE
EEFRESTENBBARDEFNABER
NER D EREE A ANERFE  ARE &
HAEMMMNB AR MERI L BFEE
EEFREZTENB AT EMEAE
BES B BER -

B ESE

KN B R201459 A 25 H £/ 44 i 18 8 IR i
FE BARTM—RREZEmRZRA
ZBEIXAFEERERIETE R ERER

-
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(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers of
the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group and/
or the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period from
25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no further
options will be granted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one Share. The total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1% of total number of
Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014. The offer of a grant
of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter has
been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been
paid by the grantee.

The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering price
per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.

During the Period, none options was forfeited and total
9,108,000 options was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 September 2014.

B Wk

(1) BXAMRERERESS

BRAMEEREREFEEES T
AEEETRERE TTHRABRSHA
BYEANEEMNERE R SRR
FrEmAER B eEL R ER &
RAREERERESTEIB201459A4
25H B ZE2014F10A158 I HIF A A
MRAER  ZHERSTE®E— PR
B - S EREE TRBEARE—
BRA& 0 2 BRI - IRIEE IR AR ERIE
IRIEET &S TR LA FTA BREEST
FRa TEITHRMDBEE XTEE
i824,640,0008% % 17 - fHE 1201499
A30H B #ITRMN B EHIZ1% - K i
BREZZNERELNNHFDEER
FEARABABRIMIBITZERER
T7 R 4 o

BRAREERBRETZE NS,
BERRAE 1T (8 50.826/8 7T * 2014
FI0A16H B R A ARAEES SRR D E
EEITE30% °

B 7S BA B - T A B ARORE ORI e B
9,108,00017) i I HEXEFT(F B IR A
BENBRERS ZFBEERART
HEI A2014F9A30H 2 BIRER RN
¥ 5E o
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TRFEBEBREEZ2017F3A31B IH4F
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme ERBEEXAFREE A BARER S
during the year ended 31 March 2017: 2 AR AR # S
Exercise As at Forfeited Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April Grant during during during 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 2016  the period  the period the period 2017
sk #2016 #2017
BREMBIRNE RHEH fTER T 4818 g Mgk B fTE 3A31H
(HK$)
(A7)
Directors
¥
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - (2,720,000 -
gONkE 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - (2,720,000) -
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
13,600,000 - - (5,440,000) 8,160,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000 -
BEZLL 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000) -
25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
8,000,000 - - (3,200,000 4,800,000
Employees
1]
Employees at aggregate 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 468,000 - - (468,000) -
BE(AH) 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 528,000 - - - 528,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
1,572,000 - - (468,000) 1,104,000
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(2) Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014,
after which no further options will be issued. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of
the Shares), unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time). No option
may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to
be granted to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant exceeding 1% in aggregate of the Shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. The offer of a grant of share
options shall be accepted when the offer letter has been duly
signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been paid by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the acceptance of the offer
of share options.

TE-LFFR
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned
by any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: () the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (i) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option; and (i) the nominal value of the Share on
the date of grant.

During the Period, total 2,250,000 under the Share Option
Scheme was granted, none options was forfeited and 540,000
options was exercised. Details of the Share Option Scheme
has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 30
September 2014.
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The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s TRFEBEBREEZ2017F3A31B IH4F
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during ERBEEREASRE CARABR
the year ended 31 March 2017: R r &
Exercise As at Forfeited Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April Grantduring  duringthe  during the 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 2016 the period period period 2017
1137 k4 #2016 #2017
BEEDEHERE #HEH fTEm fTER 4R1H Lilah gl ARk BT 3A31H
(HK$)
(A7)
Directors
S
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 225,000 - - (225,000 -
EOEE 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2017-2/10/2026 - 324,000 - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2018-2/10/2026 - 324,000 - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2019-2/10/2026 - 432,000 - - 432,000
750,000 1,080,000 - (225,000 1,605,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 225,000 - - (225,000 -
BEEZ T 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2017-2/10/2026 - 324,000 - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2018-2/10/2026 - 324,000 - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3/10/2019-2/10/2026 - 432,000 - - 432,000
750,000 1,080,000 - (225,000) 1,605,000
Employees
&R
Employees at aggregate 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 90,000 - - (90,000) -
EE(AH) 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 90,000 - - - 90,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 120,000 - - - 120,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2017-27/11/2026 - 27,000 - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2018-27/11/2026 - 27,000 - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2019-27/11/2026 - 36,000 - - 36,000
300,000 90,000 - (90,000 300,000
Consultant
M
Consultant 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
=l 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 180,000 B B - 180,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 240,000 - - - 240,000
600,000 - - - 600,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2017, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary or
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he
or she may incur or sustain or about the execution of their duties
in their respective offices. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of the
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the date of the Listing to 31 March
2017.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to
the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 25 September
2014. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please see the “Corporate Governance Report” set out on pages
47 to 69 of this annual report for details of its compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed at the said
meeting. Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor
during the past three years.

ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report is printed in English and Chinese and is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk under the
“Listed Company Information” and our Company’s website at www.
hinsanggroup.com. Printed copies in both languages are posted to
Shareholders.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the continuing connected
transactions of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules (including the significant related party transactions as
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements during the
Period).

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1.  Sale of products under the Group brands to Brighten Hong
Limited

Date of Agreement 25 September 2014

Parties Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Brighten
Hong Limited

Term : Commenced from 16 October 2014
until 31 March 2017

Objective Brighten Hong Limited sources

the Group products for sales and
distribution to anywhere in the
World save for Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan
Annual cap for HK$18,000,000
the year ended
31 March 2017
Actual consideration HK$3,561,960
for the year ended
31 March 2017

HEXS

AT EIIARBRE £ R RIABRBRN
BREXSNFE (BREARGEMBERE
29N AHIR M E R TR H)

TERRFEFAERS

I 1ETT B IR 23 5] i & X 52 [ da JE

aa

HmEES 20149 F25H
HEp1 PTHEIT (BB R EE
TER AT
FH E2014%F10716A #2
Z201743A31H
B & BETAR R RREAR
EEELURAL RS
H(BREE R
BRI FN K&
BEHERDH
HZ20175 18,000,0007% 7T
3ASBELEFEY
FELR
BE2017F3A31H 3,561,960/ 7T

LERZERRK

&
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AWk

Date of Agreement 30 March 2017 i B E 201793 H30H
Parties Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Brighten kbl T (BB B
Hong Limited LN
Term Commenced from 1 April 2017 until FH B2017F4A1BRE
31 March 2020 20203 H31H
Objective Brighten Hong Limited sources BH# BETERARKBEA
the Group products for sales and SEERURERE
distribution to anywhere in the H(BRES RM.
World save for Hong Kong, Macau, SRAD F KK
Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan BB HERDH
Annual cap for Nil HE2017F i
the year ended SHASIBLEEZ
31 March 2017 FELR
Actual consideration Nil =RV it
for the year ended SA3IBILEEZ
31 March 2017 ERAE

EBRERSZFHS BL2HEARRHEA
2017FE3AB0R 2 A&

For details of the connected transactions, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2017.
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All the above continuing connected transactions did not exceed
the relevant annual cap amounts. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company and confirmed that they
were:

entered into on normal commercial terms;

i. in the ordinary and usual course of business and are fair and
reasonable to the Group; and

ii. the terms of the agreements are no less favourable to the
Group than terms offered by Independent Third Parties,
and therefore are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has
appointed the auditor of the Company to carry out certain
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

By order of the Board
Pang Siu Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017

AL BERER S RBBHABFE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
8 30 B

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB
The Landmark IR
BT 4 36 E % A H R A 11 Pedder Street 2ITH115
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited Central BEES
Hong Kong EERLTITRE3E

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
100 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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8 % B il o

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FAREXER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REEZEHNFEHE BREZFERESE
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ~ BwZNANEHE MG A M BRRTREEN
financial statements of the current period. These matters were = - EZEEFRERG S MBHREK Lotk
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial EXERRERBLFRE MASHUES
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we EEBEFHZERER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREZER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 55 FE il % T B9 7] A o]

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.
2486 M HRER W E22 ©

The carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$16,651,000 as at 31 March 2017.
R2017F3A31TH BEZRKRRENEEEN S
16,651,000/% JT °

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement
and estimates by management in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables.
EEWREHRWFEN TR EE REREEERT
MR EIRE L E 5 B W R R & A 2 6 R fd 5t e

In determining not to make allowance for trade
receivables, management considers the credit quality
of individual trade receivables, including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis of the trade receivables.
REEREMEZRBEELEER BTRESE
BEMNEZRKFENEEEER BB RATEEN
TR REERBANE S EKKIENRER
DT e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESZERNMAREAAREXER

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
receivables included:
EEAHE S RYGIER R BIMEMIRF 81

° Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables,
on a sample basis, to the source documents,
including sales invoices and good delivery notes.

o IRMBELERE S RKGIAN KRR SRR (8
BHERERREE ) #ETRE -

° Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of
trade receivables with reference to the credit profile
including default or delay in payments, settlement
records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis
of individual customers.

e ZEREFEFHNEETH (BEBRIEENK
BN  REERIEALIRE D) 5HEE 5K
FRIART Y B M) & BRI
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Key audit matter

HREZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESZERNMARAARERER

Valuation of inventories

FRHA & (E

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial  Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories
statements. included:

2R a M BEwRME21 -

The inventories comprised of raw materials and
finished goods for resale amounting to approximately
HK$8,899,000 as at 31 March 2017.

R201743 A3  FE (BREERMH EKHEEK®)
%) 58,899,000/ JT °

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgement required in
estimating the allowance for inventories.
EERRAFEHERMAREFNTEANEFFER
i T E(F LB TR E I -

Management assessed the recoverability of the
amount based on an estimation of the net realisable
value of the inventories which involves the analyses
of the status of the subsequent sales and the
current market price of the inventories. If the actual
net realisable values of the inventories are less than
expected as a result of change in market condition,
material allowances for inventories may result.
ERERBGFERERFEN(EFRIEHN A E
- ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ &%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁwmﬁm
fefMEATRAZEBMERFENERAZRFERR
TEHR - RIPJRE B BT EE R -

EEEHFERENEFBRE:

Obtaining an understanding of how the allowance for
inventories is estimated by management.

THREEBWAGFERE -

Assessing the reasonableness and sufficiency of
allowance for inventories with reference to the
subsequent usage and movement of raw materials,
historical sales records, current market conditions,
aging analysis and subsequent selling prices of the
finished goods; and challenging management for
long aged inventories without any provision.
DERMHNRETRBEALES BEHEELHK
BARIMR RSk m KR EENEEERE
BEAAERAR : URERENRIFEMERE
EieLEH#-

Testing the aging analysis of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the source documents.

HEMEEESTFENRE DT RR X ETRE

Tracing a selection of finished goods with
subsequent selling prices to the source documents
to test the net realisable values.
PEREKmHEBEEBR R AAF TR
e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a bodly,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Chan Ching Pang.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ching Pang
Practising Certificate Number: PO5746

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LR Y B L E S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 & 22017435431 H 1F F/Z

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BT BT T
Revenue WA 5 201,815 227,460
Cost of sales $HE A AR (68,572) (89,091)
Gross profit EF 133,243 138,369
Other income H At U A 6 5,141 5,750
Other gains and losses HEizm REE 7 (6,676) (3,842)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIERAX (41,006) (47,823)
Administrative expenses THHAX (77,679) (65,472)
Finance costs BhE B A 8 (8) -
Profit before tax B 5t B A 13,015 26,982
Income tax expense FriSfi sz 9 (4,707) (5,767)
Profit for the year FREF 10 8,308 21,215
Other comprehensive income/ Hth2mkA~
(expense) (BAX)
Item that may be reclassified HIZ[pEERT 74
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmZHEE -
Exchange differences on translating BEINHEFE 2
foreign operations & N ZE%8 (3,980) (3,123)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHEERERN
investments N ER S 8,314 -
4,334 (3,123)
Total comprehensive income FAZEBARE
for the year 12,642 18,092
Profit/(Loss) for the year DUTE&FEEER
attributable to: B (B#R):
— Owners of the Company —ARRAEHEEA 9,798 21,214
— Non-controlling interests —IF¥E TS (1,490) 1
8,308 21,215
Total comprehensive income/ UTEFEEER
(expense) for the year 2EKA 7 (BX)
attributable to: HaE:
— Owners of the Company A YNEIEZ=DN 14,094 18,091
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (1,452) 1
12,642 18,092
Earnings per share sERAEF 13
- Basic (HK cents) —EAR (B 0.96 2.65
— Diluted (HK cents) —#5E (B) 0.95 2.64
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#3 o W B5R DL AR

At 31 March 2017 R20174#3/31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
bz B¥ETT BT T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B N E 15 117,399 40,749
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 16 30,268 27,393
Investment property REME 17 - 6,289
Intangible assets mEE 18 1,548 3,480
Deposit and prepayments for life ASREZZER
insurance policies B FE 19 4,954 4,795
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BE &
plant and equipment B Pl & 2,871 387
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 20 408,552 -
565,592 83,093
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 21 8,899 13,081
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EAth e Uk 518 22 33,562 38,119
Tax refundable ALRERH A 2,983 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIR S 23 288,851 239,742
334,295 290,942
Total assets HEERE 899,887 374,035
Current liabilities mBAR
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EMERFKIA 24 28,937 26,467
Current tax liabilities BB R G 395 1,070
29,332 27,537
Net current assets mOEERE 304,963 263,405
Total assets less current liabilites HE#EARDER 870,555 346,498
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#3 o W B5R DL AR

At 31 March 2017 R20174#3/31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 BYTT BT T
Capital and reserves EEXR W

Share capital N 26 109,012 80,047
Reserves EEA 725,573 263,250

Equity attributable to owners of the RARHEB AEGERE
Company 834,585 343,297
Non-controlling interests FEVE R E = 35,970 3,201
Total equity #aEnA 870,555 346,498

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 207 were #100B & F207E E v A MBRED
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 2017468238 & Ee# /R FI% - I

June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: RIATREEE:
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
BOET FRERE
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Fo Rl £ 52 W) o

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTREAELS
Foreign
Investments currency Share Non-
Share Share Merger revaluation translation options Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
S
k&  RBEE  AKHKE REEGREE 2 EREE WRERE REEN B FRRER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETr  A%Tr  B%Tr  A%Tr BT AETr BT A%Tx
(Note 26) (Note)
B2 (i3]
At 1 April 2015 20154 A1H 80,000 219,351 (71,463) - (1,387) 2,402 105,779 334,682 - 334,682
Profit for the year EREN - - - - - - 21,214 21,214 1 21215
Other comprehensive expense ~ £E £ 2 EF %
for the year
Exchange differences on BRENEEHL
tranglating foreign operations ~ EREE - - - - (3,129) - - (3,129) - (3,123
Total comprehensive income/  EE2ENRA/
(expense) for the year (FR) 8z - - - - (3,129) - 21,214 18,091 1 18,092
Dividends recognised BRAERORE
as distribution - - . . - ~ (16005  (16,006) ~ (16,00
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 3,200 3,200
Issue of shares on exercise of  A{TEBREMEITRG
share options 47 598 - - - (258) - 387 - 387
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BEREzE E LR
share-based payments BERRONR - - - - - 6,142 - 6,142 - 6,142
At31 March 2016 #0163 831F 80047 219949 (71469 - (4.510) 8286 110988 343207 3200 346498
Profit/loss) for the year ERERN/ (BR) - - - - - - 9,798 9,798 (1,490) 8,308
Other comprehensive income/  EEE2HE
(expense) for the year WA/ (BI%)
Exchange differences on RENEEB L
translating foreign operations EREE - - - - (4,018) - - (4,018) 38 (3,980)
Fair value gain on MRNEREN
avallable-for-sale investments AT B - - - 8,314 - - - 8,314 - 8,314
Total comprehensive income/  £E2ENA/
(expense) for the year (A28 - - - 8,314 4,018) - 9,798 14,004 (1,452) 12,642
Dividends recognised BRAENRORE
as distribution - - - - - - (32,569) (32,569) - (32,569)
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 34,418 34,418
Changes in ownership interests &2 #2282 HELF
in subsidiaries without FERERED
change of control - - - - - - 197 197 (197) -
Issue of shares by subscripion ~ MREA R ETH R 28,000 469,512 - - - - - 497,512 = 497,512
Issue of shares on exercise of  R{TERREMETRE
share options 965 12,832 - - - (5,486) - 8,311 - 8,311
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRESEE RN
share-based payments BEROH - - - - - 3,743 - 3,743 = 3,743
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31R 109,012 702,293 (71,463) 8314 (8,528) 6,543 88,414 834,585 35,970 870,555

Mz AfRBERBEEESERARRNBRARAK
SEETEMABMRANESHE GRHEE
BEARREKRAER) 2HOEE-

Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital
of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other
companies comprising the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation,
after elimination of intra-group investments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Bl eR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities E&FHMSHERE
Profit before tax B 5t Bl A 13,015 26,982
Adjustments for: TP BIEFE
Finance costs A& PR A 8 -
Interest income B HA (4,655) (4,907)
Gain on fair value change of REWMELATE
investment property FE (729) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEKR
plant and equipment Btz W (97) (210)
Bargain purchase gain on WEEKI B R EA Y
acquisition of subsidiaries BN - (3,869)
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & #ifi J&l # [al (522) (399)
Share-based payment AR 7 B ETE R
expenses NRAX 3,743 6,142
Amortisation of prepaid lease ENHEERE
payments 5y 954 775
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 1,932 1,610
Amortisation of premium and ASRBZRER
charges on life insurance gust: 3| 57 180
Depreciation of property, ER =0
plant and equipment BT E 6,431 3,481
Operating cash flows before movements & i& & N & ) il 2
in working capital KEBHERE 20,137 29,785
Decrease in inventories FERD 4,626 8,518
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other & 5 N H b lE UK IA
receivables WA () 4,364 (10,360)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other & 5 K E {th fE(F 3078
payables #an, CRd) 2,918 (1,327)
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERE 32,045 26,616
Income taxes refunded REFTEH - 74
Income taxes paid BT (8,365) (1,366)
Net cash generated from KETEBFTIS
operating activities & F58 23,680 05,324
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
B Bl e HR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT BT T
Cash flows from investing activities R EEFEFMSHERE
Interest received B U F B 4,438 4,741
Increase in short-term deposits with [RENERH 8 = & A /Y
original maturity over three months R HBIRTTIF SRIE 0N (1,131) (13,857)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEX
plant and equipment B EFTIS RIA 131 321
Purchases of property, plant and WEWE FHE
equipment B (82,541) (21,759)
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEE % - =
plant and equipment MEREBZES (2,880) (387)
Purchases of leasehold land EEHELH - (10,802)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B /B A A 30 - (9,185)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFARE T (81,983) (50,928)
Cash flows from financing activities ME;EHREH&RE
Dividends paid BT B (32,569) (16,005)
Interest paid RENEA/NSS (8) -
Capital contribution from TR R HE
non-controlling interests 34,418 3,200
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FTS FE 105,585 387
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEBMES
financing activities (FrA)REF5E 107,426 (12,418)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand &R R &S EY
cash equivalents 8in (R )BE 49,123 (38,022
Cash and cash equivalents at FPHRER
the beginning of year ReEEY 217,195 254,746
Effect of foreign exchange ExgneE
rates changes 224 471
Cash and cash equivalents at FROBER
the end of year HeEED 266,542 217,195
Representing: (X
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 288,851 239,742
Short-term deposits with =& AN EEIHH
maturity over three months RERITER (22,309) (22,547)
266,542 217,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

106

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is principally engaged in developing, marketing,
selling and distributing of personal care products, healthcare
products and household products as well as provision of
Chinese medical healthcare related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

—REH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28  the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

R RESTBRMBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HK (FRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Financial Instruments'’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the
Related Amendments'

Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property’

Assets for Unrealised Losses*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or

1 January 2018, as appropriate

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continueq)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

At 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$8,255,000 as
disclosed in note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial
effect until the directors of the Company complete a detailed
review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has the power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of the other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continueqd)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the
net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing (Continuea)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)
Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.

TESHBE (#)

R BERNNREZH (&)
BRTE/ZERE

BEEBUIINATEIT 2SS
MARERONRZZHIRER
R 577 R IRESE B AT
ERBZAFEFE ERF
A SEHIET BRI IR T RIS
HET AN R FEFE-FRIFEM
RBATEERERREE  PTUEL
ERAME 2 ATV ERRRFAL

L

F
(e

m S
i
T Bo O 5B

X

B

TS 75 5 S 46 FE A< BIEARR 18 SR AT 71
THH) 48N °

FEAT BNERR I8 TY 32 55 1R 2 FE R Bt 4 A
AtEERTOGE N EAESEE M EM
2 e R AT 2 RV BR AR AT A
[ - R A5 e SR B0 A N B R E b 4R
ERERBUATE B KA IR A
B T BREBAERB KA
HE -AEBEOERARIABE IR R
SHIRGERECEMRER LERM
MR E -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFBE &)
(Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible BEEREREEZRERSE (&)
assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) bt EE (RS ELEM) 2K
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying & BEREREE BZEE (33
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to CEABMN) CEREESAREELA
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the WEEHE RO REERBER  §X5
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount B R (B B 18 AR A R R B A R E A
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a (ERA)  ARBEREPIRBZEMNS
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in EENREE I EZEMEE-BE
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below FEEMNRSZEREQAFERS
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), ERA (WA EE) HEABE (W
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the A2 REZHANERE - BR1TH
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to IeEEE 2 RERBEEFERL S E
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An EZEMHEMEE - REBESAE
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. RIS MR
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying R EEEEERER - & (HReE
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to BN 2 EREEKARZEH LB
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that ZiEEt el &5 HZAS ZFEE
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying BENMSHEARZKUNTFELEREE
amount that would have been determined had no impairment (HBFELEEN) BRREESEME
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) IES/EZHEETE B ERE BB AR
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised B R
immediately in profit or loss.
Inventories 7E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEZKAEZERFEME 2RIE
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out %‘@JTE TFEKARAS LT EEFE -
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated seling A& BRFEEFENMETSERME
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and 1E TR IR A REITIHERATE K
costs necessary to make the sale. PiN
Provisions B’E
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present WAEEABTEHSIMERERK
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is HEEME MAKEGAAEAGE
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, ZEBEME LA EEFZETZE2E
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the - R sR s o
obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognise in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

U it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFEBE (#)

(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

or

AT

i R A LA AT A BIAR R

BN SR A R -

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@)
family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

=%
the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b)
applies:
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary

of the other entity);
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(viy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of trade receivables, including the credit
history including default or delay in payments, settlement
records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis of each
individual debtor.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

142

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value determined by
independent professional valuers based on direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the property interest in its existing
state and making references to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant markets. In relying on the valuation
report of the independent professional valuers, management
has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the market conditions prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Any changes in the market
conditions will affect the fair value of the investment property of
the Group.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for the
sales of goods.

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s reportable
and operating segments under “HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments” are as follows:

1. Product Development Segment — sales of products
developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution
rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution of
products purchased from authorised dealers, independent
traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

4.  Healthcare Segment — development of mother and child
related health products, hospital, medical centre and
related services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEHR (#)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results DEUBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results T3 BT s RAEE D EREl 2 ¥ AR
by reportable and operating segment. SEWMARFEENDHT -
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B E2017F3A31HILERE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
EFE SMARR HaEH &
b1 EELE b a8 &t

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B%TR BETT BYETR BETT %R
Revenue KA
External sales HIMEE 178,931 19,042 3,842 - 201,815
Segment profit/(loss) PEET/ (EE) 24,242 (2,562) (37) (3,801) 17,508
Interest income FEMA 4,655
Unallocated expenses FABRX (9,140)
Finance costs BEKAK 8)
Profit before tax bRt AR I 13,015
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEHR (#)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continuead)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

DEBMARRE (#)

HZE2016F3A31HIEFEE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
EmAE mBRER EmEE R
il BEHEH o il CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue BrA
External sales HOMEE 185,032 30,540 11,888 - 227,460
Segment profit/(loss) PEEF /(BB 24,292 4,421 (496) - 28,217
Interest income HEWA 4,907
Unallocated expenses AABRX (6,142)
Profit before tax BR A AT R 26,982

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss
from each segment without allocation of corporate expenses,
interest income and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the board of directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

KD ED 2 g 5T BUR B M 3R i AR
SR EHBEBR D EF &
BESSBHM 2 &2F,/EEZEE
WEIREGERS  FIEWARRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEHR (#)

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERAERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities MR TZ? Al E R E DRI D B R
by reportable and operating segment. EENEERBENDH -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
AETRT BT T
Segment assets SEHEE
Product Development Segment EmAEDH 182,302 119,779
Brand Development and mhEF 3 R BT 5 &
Management Segment 4,098 7,601
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDES 456 2,118
Healthcare Segment sl 7,635 -
Total segment assets DEEELE 194,491 129,498
Unallocated FOE 705,396 244,537
Consolidated assets CEEE 899,887 374,035
Segment liabilities SWAR
Product Development Segment EmAE S 26,968 22,943
Brand Development and MR E R ERE SR
Management Segment 1,780 2,959
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDES 76 565
Healthcare Segment fi 5z o &P 113 -
Total segment liabilities DE B ERE 28,937 26,467
Unallocated AP 395 1,070
Consolidated liabilities maRE 29,332 27,537
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERD KRR NI #EEL AR
allocating resources between segments: 7B
o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than ° k] ﬁ’_ﬁ%a 37\@37_\@% 788 (7]
available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash, HEERE - RITEHRLRS
deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies and ABRE 2 iLE RN FE XA
tax refundable. RIEBHKERIN) -

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than ° FIT ﬁ RECDEALE D H (B
current tax liabilities. HAM A A ERRIN) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

146

WARDEHER (&)

(Continued)
Other segment information Hitt 5 ZBE R
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B E20175F3A31ALLFEE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
EFE SMARR HaEH &
b1 EELE b a8 &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B%TR BETT BYETR BETT %R
Amounts included in the measure of 32 7 &8s 72t E5 18 3¢
segment profit or 0ss or DHEERTALE
segment assets: -
Addition to non-current assets ERBDBEERE 83,046 681 138 1,934 85,799
Amortisation of intangiole assets EWEEEHE 1,932 - - - 1,932
Amortisation of prepaid lease BREERE &
payments 954 - - - 954
Depreciation of property, mE - -BREREH
plant and equipment e 6,139 235 48 9 6,431
Gain on fair value change of REMEATE
investment property 2 729 - - - 729
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment B pa e % 3 - - 97
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & M5 & @l 522 - - - 522
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEHR (#)

(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) Hinn HER (£)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE20165F3A31HILFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
EmAE mBRER EmEE 3
58 EEAY 2% 73 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT AETT BT BT

Amounts included in the measure SES R ERD

of segment profit or loss or PHEERTAL L

segment assets: B
Addition to non-current assets ERBEERE 43,820 427 166 - 44,413
Amortisation of intangible assets BREE BH 1,610 - - - 1,610
Amortisation of prepaid BREERE S

lease payments 775 - - - 775
Depreciation of property, nE BEREEZ

plant and equipment & 3,145 242 94 - 3,481
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER

plant and equipment M Wi 171 28 11 - 210
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & s 2l 399 - - - 399

SE-LEER FEEE(ERRRERAT 147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding available-
for-sale investments and deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies) is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

WARDEHER (&)

1 13 B

AEENES PEARKAME ([
B RABEEES-

BRAANKEKXBINBEPOHRAER
REEXBONES D25 -ARAAK
SEFRBEE (TEEAHLER
BRASREZZE MANTIE)NE
MREEMIEVESI D25 -

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
KEIFBERBIKA EREEE

2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BYETT BT T
Hong Kong B 155,327 191,783 106,367 30,014
PRC H 42,161 31,485 45,645 48,163
Taiwan aE 4,327 4,192 74 121
201,815 227,460 152,086 78,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION WARDHER (&)
(Continued)
Information about major customers FRTEEFHNESR

Revenues from customers for the corresponding years

KR FRIG AR B AU ATEIB10%

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as HEPHWALT :
follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
HBETT BT
Customer A' ZEEA 36,843 43,681
Customer B! EPFB 21,701 24,053

! Revenue from Product Development Segment and Brand

! KEEMFAEDBARBIEFERE

Development and Management Segment. B EBR A -
OTHER INCOME H g A
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Interest income on bank deposits RITHE A E A 4,014 4,741
Interest income on deposit and AESREZESRBNHREZ
prepayments for life FEWA
insurance policies 217 166
Interest income on loan receivables FEWE R 2 F B A 424 -
Rental income HE WA 199 309
Forfeiture of customers’ deposits BREFPERS 199 129
Compensation from a brand proprietor — % Sk A AHE X HE
for breach of contract - 302
Others HA 88 103
5,141 5,750
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HthamREE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Gain on fair value change of KEMERNTFEZ SR
investment property 729 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment Bl olEn 97 210
Bargain purchase gain arising on WM B ARIEEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries EEBWE NS - 3,869
Net foreign exchange loss HNEF 1B (7,502) (7,921)
(6,676) (3,842)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 8 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. FIEHMAX

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Current tax: BVHARS I8 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMED
— Current year —KREEF 3,646 5,914
— Under/(Over) provision in prior year —~ —@EFEEBEERR
(EBFRRE) 666 (147)
4,312 5,767
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI ERTER
— Current year —RFE 395 -
Total income tax recognised RIBRERZ
in profit or loss Fristi %8 4,707 5,767

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC Subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

No provision for taxation has been provided for companies in
the Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin Islands as they are
not subject to any tax during the current and prior years.

No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for the Taiwan subsidiary as there was no assessable
profits for both years.

RzMEFERBEELSREER
B R SR A1) 1216.6% % R 5T 1
BENEHEME -

BREBEPEARAMBEEMEHX
(TEEMBHZA]) REEMEREE
T A6 B - B B B R B R PR (8 F Y
& 15 [525% ©

HRAFERBEFERSHE LR
BREZBESN QB HAGRNEMAN
TR B BT A R AHE IR B

BN & EH B A RN M EF L E
ERERTOE N - M E|EHR A& B
EPTETiRE-
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea) 9. FTEBIMAX &)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEMBEX HEGEERLAMEE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W K HIBR B AR A E BRI
other comprehensive income as follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Profit before tax B 5 A1 i A 13,015 26,982
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBMNEHBE16.5%18
of 16.5% B IR 2,147 4,452
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ ~AIFNFE G S R S 2 &
for tax purpose 2,337 2,036
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERMUW ARG 52
tax purpose (588) (1,649)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FIERHIBEBOHIET L 1,103 1,752
Utilisation of tax losses not previously — EhF AR TELMER AT EE 1B
recognised (446) -
Effect of different tax rates of TEH A B ARE [ 45 & O FT B
subsidiaries operating in other NAETRAMEHT T E
jurisdictions 39 (348)
Under/(Over) provision in prior year BAFERETR/
(HREERE) 666 (147)
Others HA (551) (329)
Tax charge for the year FEBBELZL 4,707 5,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FREF
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FRmMENER(FFA) TF&IE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIXNA(BEESHE)
emoluments 42,971 39,717
Amortisation of intangible assets BmILEE HEH
(included in cost of sales) (FtASHERA) 1,932 1,610
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B {8 & k18 ~ # £ 954 775
Depreciation of property, V- BB MREEIITE
plant and equipment 6,431 3,481
Cost of inventories recognised as ERARIHFEKR
an expense 65,332 83,645
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT BN 2 750 700
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & iUl # []
(included in cost of sales) (BT ASHERKA) (522) (399)
Gross rental income from KEYHE 2 BHES KA
investment property (199) (309)
Less: direct operating expenses B EELERY 50 54
Net rental income from wEYHE 2 FHSKA
investment property (149) (255)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S N EERFETHAEMS
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief ENSENRRARIEEREZITEHA
executive of the Company were as follows: BMMemT:
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B E20175F3A3MHLFEE
Other emoluments
EfhEl &
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
HeR NE&nE BHERAME
g Rt E# ERHAR & &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RETT  MWTR  RBTR  RWTR EmTR
Executive directors piTE®
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note (i) FONTEE () - 2,368 1,987 25 4,380
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZLT - 1,939 1,322 18 3,279
Ms. Dong Mei Xian (Note (i) XL (PEG) - 134 - - 134
Non-executive directors EUTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling "EERLT 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (i) RAEFEE (FEE6) 133 - - - 133

Independent non-executive directors BIEHTEE

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FROkRE 240 - - - 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HE®EtT 180 - - - 180
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung REELE 180 - - - 180

913 4,441 3,309 43 8,706
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S N EERFETHAEMS

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE2016F3A31HILFE
Other emoluments
Htnpe
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
ek WikinB  BAREFIEE
e Hit g # ERNER 3R A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BB
Executive directors niTEE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note (i) g1 (FEE) - 2,009 3,387 25 5,421
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZZL - 1,589 2,106 18 3,713
Mr. Mok Tsan San (Note (i) REELE (M) - 414 - 7 421
Non-executive director FUTESR
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERUT 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive directors BWIFHTEER
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FrokRE 240 - - - 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny He®EET 180 - - - 180
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung GREELE 180 - - - 180
780 4,012 5,493 50 10,335
Notes: B 5
) Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the chief executive officer of the Company. () EOUTRERRARNITHEER
(i)  Appointed on 4 July 2016. (i)  M2016F7TH4BHESZ -
(i)  Appointed on 1 May 2015 and resigned on 30 September 2015. (i) 72015551 BEZE RHH20159F9 A
30H E¥ L °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

11.

156

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments and the independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

None of the Company’s directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2016: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Company’s directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016:
Nil).

1. EERFETHAENS
(#)

EXFRRTESEZME T BH AR
FHUARAIRAEEEESHRERZ
ARTG o EXPIRIEMITE = MBI 3F
HITEEME T EHEEFER/EAR
AIEFRH RS-

FR-ARANEEHERETANE
(20164 : ) o

FA AREALEAORNRREAESES
B - AERBEEIMAS AR EE
B R R REBIAE(E (20164 - /&) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2016: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2016: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

12. EEBREFMES

FR AEENIERSFTHNEES
FEM G (20165F M%) EF - H 5
HEEN EXHFE - FARAEB=R
(20165F =R FEERARAEE
TBRABM &S HWNEENTHMFE
E RPN

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BETIT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 2,234 1,783

Share-based payments VARR D BEREM R - 161
Contributions to retirement RARAE FET B 51

benefits schemes 54 49

Total emoluments B & 42 %A 2,288 1,993

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

FHORATHENIEARRESFR

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the SEMEB AT
following bands is as follows:
2017 2016
(Number of (Number of
employees) employees)
(lERA®) (lEEAZ)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3

FR - AEEVERTAAERRA
EERFMALTZAE  UEREBD
ANA SN A AR 55 [ 14 H 42 [ ok Bk B 4
& (20164 : ) o

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals of the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. ERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAAFIHEANBLEREARESTR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the MTER TSR ERD

following data:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Earnings aF
Earnings for the purpose of basic and ~ FA AT & 5 B 5 7R K #58 2 )
diluted earnings per share (Profit for ZBF (KRB E AEE
the year attributable to owners of the ~ F R F))
Company) 9,798 21,214
2017 2016
’000 ‘000
T F A&
Number of shares Bin&A
Weighted average number of RATTESRERERF 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T m AR N 19 81
basic earnings per share 1,020,672 800,134
Effect of dilutive potential TER BT ETE
ordinary shares:
— Share options — I I 9,397 3,473
Weighted average number of RAHESREERT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T B AR N YD 81
diluted earnings per share 1,030,069 803,607
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R E
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
AETRT BT T
Dividends recognised as distribution RFRNERIED KRS
during the year
- 2016 Final — HK$0.01 —2016F RHAL R
(2015: HK$0.01) per share —#Z[%0.01 7T
(20154 : 0.01%87T) 10,853 8,000
- 2017 Interim — HK$0.01 — 20174 BAR B
(2016: HK$0.01) per share —&Z[%0.018 7T
(20164 : 0.01%87T) 10,858 8,005
— 2017 Special — HK$0.01 —2017F R B
(2016: Nil) per share —&Z[%0.018 7T
(20164 : &) 10,858 -
32,569 16,005
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RFERRER EFCRBRTER
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 of HK$0.01 20173 ABA L FREZ KRR EE
(2016: HK$0.01) per ordinary share has been proposed by the f % 8 f%0.0178 7T (20164 : 0.0178
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the o) EREBRRR EERRAE Bt
forthcoming general meeting. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

160

15. 3%k -BWEKRRE

Leasehold Building Leasehold
land held held for Furniture and Motor  improvements
for own use own use equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
BERRY BEBR HENE
HELH of: k3 R R RE RERKE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BETT BETT
Cost BF
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 415 3,021 8,846 8,612 6,088 7,267 33,834
Additions NE 15,682 8,907 423 1,995 1,185 28,092
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wb i /8 A ) - - 42 - - 42
Disposals HE - - - (1,169) - (1,169)
Exchange adjustments EHAR - (476) (138) (40) (154) (808)
At 31 March 2016 RA2016F3431H 18,603 17,277 8,939 6,874 8,298 59,991
Additions HE 67,233 8,040 1,999 2,439 3,217 82,928
Transfer from investment property B & ¥ 3£ & 5 - 1,005 - - - 1,005
Disposals HE - - - (815) - (815)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (668) (54) (48) (197) (967)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 85,836 25,654 10,884 8,450 11,318 142,142
Accumulated depreciation RitimE
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 18 956 1,332 5918 4,481 4,316 17,003
Provided for the year FERE 144 394 881 1,085 977 3,481
Eliminated on disposals Nkl F ] - - - (1,058) - (1,058)
Exchange adjustments ERHE - (20) 86) (24) (54) (184)
At 31 March 2016 RA2016F3A31H 1,100 1,706 6,713 4,484 5,239 19,242
Provided for the year FERE 2,007 755 1,035 1,409 1,225 6,431
Eliminated on disposals R SR - - - (781) - (781)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (43) 4 39 (77) (149)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 3,107 2,418 7,752 5,079 6,387 24,743
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 March 2017 201730310 82,729 23,236 3,132 3,31 4,931 117,399
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3531 B 17,503 15,571 2,006 2,390 3,059 40,749

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

15. ME -BERRE &)

LHAME - -BENRERBAERE

BN ERFE:

annum:
Leasehold land held for Over the lease term RHIEER® REEH
own use HELH
Building held for own use 3% RIEERAMEFT 3%
Furniture and equipment ~ 20% — 50% TINSE 20% - 50%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25% nE 20% - 25%
Leasehold improvements ~ 25% or over the lease term MEMEEER  26%KIZHEH
and fixtures whichever is the shorter RKE (ABEEARE)
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AFHERIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
At the beginning of year REFH] 28,369 19,554
Addition NE - 10,802
Transfer from investment property SRS =RIEL-t: 5,542 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FB{ 8 & k18 ~ # £ (954) (775)
Exchange adjustments bE S E (1,622) (1,212)
At the end of year RER 31,335 28,369
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYTT BT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BLERMME 22 :
Current asset (included in trade and RHEE (CBEEEEIR
other receivables) H U sRIER) 1,067 976
Non-current asset FEREEE 30,268 27,393
31,335 28,369

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land

located in the PRC.

B LEEH

AEENBENEEFEBRERLN R

WG -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

17.

162

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17. REY X

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT
At the beginning of year REH] 6,289 6,555
Change in fair value recognised in RIBRERZ AT EZY
profit or loss 729 -
Transfer to property, BEREYE - B REE
plant and equipment LA KRB R EFKIR
and prepaid lease payments (6,547) -
Exchange adjustments ME W, B (471) (266)
At the end of year RER - 6,289

The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose is measured
using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment property.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at the date
of transfer to property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Chung Hin Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31
March 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property was
determined based on direct comparison method assuming
sale of the property interest in its existing state and making
references to comparable market observable transactions
of similar properties in the same locations and conditions as
available in the relevant market. There has been no change from
the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the property is its current use.

RELLEHERFARRESHIEER
AIBER G2 AEEY XS T ER
NFERAFE TDRERARRR

AEBEREMENERDE BE M
RELBENEEFRBEARZAFET
HENEEMERENBLISERE
EHEMTRITFEERARIZZ AL
T2 B EREEEY-

REBIREYMEN20165F3A31H /Y
NFEDREAEEMERENE L
BERBEXRMGEMT R EEENER
RMARARIZRZEAHETHNEHES
HEEEY

AREEREMEZ N FERERLER
FEE  RRMEERIRERNHEE
WS ERBET S ERER R
78RR RE XN E L™
GRABRXZ - HENERE-FE
PrAREREER-

REFMENRTFER MERS K
RIEMEQHEIRE AR -
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17.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continuea) 17. REW¥E (8)
Details of the Group’s investment property and information REEREMENFBEREBAATE
about the fair value hierarchy are as follows: ZHEMERDT
Fair value at 31 March
R3B31EZLFE Valuation technique(s) and
Investment property Fair value hierarchy key input(s)
REME 2017 2016 DTFEFR HEFEREEGARE
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERETR BETT
Commercial property unit N/A 6,289  Level 2 Direct comparison method based on
located in the PRC AEH E-R market observable transactions
URHESEAMESQ of similar properties and adjust to
reflect the conditions and locations
of the subject property
ERRENEZTHIBRRH5KE
BHBUARTE Wi AR RIZA
MERNGHERUE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. MIL&EE
Licenses
hE B
HK$’000
BT
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 18 -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries WEE M B A B RS A 5,090
At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 201653831 H R2017¥3H31H 5,090
Accumulated amortisation RetiEs
At 1 April 2015 201544 A1 A -
Charge for the year FERE 1,610
At 31 March 2016 7201643 H31H 1,610
Charge for the year FERX 1,932
At 31 March 2017 #2017%3A31H 3,542
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2017 ®20175E3A31H 1,548
At 31 March 2016 201643 H31H 3,480

The licenses have finite useful lives and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over 2.5 years.

ZERRABEEAIAFH WIRE
ARELER2 5F N HESH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

19.

164

DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR LIFE
INSURANCE POLICIES

As referred to in note 30, on 1 June 2015, the Group acquired
the entire interest in Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (“Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical”). In 2013, Tai
Wo Tong Pharmaceutical entered into life insurance policies
with an insurance company to insure Mr. Pang Siu Hin and
Ms. Kwan Lai Man, the directors of the Company. Under the
policies, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical is the beneficiary and
policy holder and the total insured sum is US$2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,600,000). Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical is required to pay upfront deposits of
US$671,383 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,237,000)
including premium charges at inception of the policies
amounting to US$40,283 (equivalent to approximately
HK$314,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical can terminate
the policies at any time and receive cash back based on the
cash value of the policies at the date of withdrawal, which
is determined by the upfront payments of US$671,383 plus
accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (‘Cash Valug”). In
addition, if withdrawal is made, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge. The insurance company will pay Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical a guaranteed interest of 4.0% per annum for
the first three years, followed by minimum guaranteed interest
rate of 2.25% per annum or above 2.25% per annum for the
following years.

At 31 March 2017, the deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies amounted to approximately HK$5,010,000
(2016: HK$4,850,000), with approximately HK$56,000 (2016:
HK$55,000) being included in trade and other receivables.

The deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States Dollar (‘US$").

19. ABREZEERBANRE

a0 B FE30FT it - 20156818 ¢
AEBRBEAMERE (FE)BR
NAI(TAMERIZE|) 2 2 EBARHE-
20134 - KFIE B 22 (R B A &) 7]
UABRE BARBESZLITE
ERBRBEZTRR - BERE K
MERELSIZARREFBEA B
REEH(E 52,000,000 7T (HHE R4
15,600,000/ 7T ) ° A Fl & &I 4% 78 37
N ¥E - #2 £ 671,383% 7T (FBE R L
5,237,000/ 7T ) ' B IE IR E A % B B
#){R #40,283% 7T (48 & 1A £9314,000
PETT) o A= R EEABE RS 4R (LR &8 -
WIZHHE A RERSEB KR
& th B FRIE671,383%% TN B 5t
ERMAERBTRERRERE ([
SEME])FTERE o b - HBEEIRAR -
A EY TR 2ERFEE R
BNB N E = FRAME R &Y
BFI0%MREN S HEBEFEERK
RAR B FI R T F2.25% K FF2.25% A
EXfe

R2017F3A318 ABREZ S
K 8 1~ 7 8 £ 495,010,000/ 7T (2016
£ : 4,850,000/ 7T ) * #956,000/% 7T
(20164 : 55,000 7T) Jhat AB 5 &
H th JE U FRIE

ASREZIES RIENFKIATIAET
([ETl)atE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. HEERE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT T T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong R & B LT HIRAE FH 408,552 -
Included in equity securities listed in Hong Kong above as L R2017F3A3NB 2B A LT
at 31 March 2017 is the Group’s investment in Fullshare AELFBRAEENREEEZERAR
Holdings Limited (“Fullshare”), a company incorporated in the nE(T8E]) (—HRHASESE
Cayman Islands, with a carrying amount of approximately L2 AR ZHRE  REEBESLD
HK$408,552,000. The investment represents a approximately 408,562,000/ 7L ° i I EHE XA
0.60% holding of the ordinary shares of Fullshare and more LR 190.60%.2 E B KB AKE
than 10% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2017. R201743 A1 A EEREZ210% °
21. INVENTORIES 21. #&
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Raw materials R4 % 1,303 1,625
Finished products for resale HEEX M 7,596 11,456
8,899 13,081
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

166

22. EZ R HEHMEWFRIEA

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

Trade receivables B 5 WA 16,651 25,333

Prepayments to suppliers )t FE P TR 3R 1,463 583

Prepaid lease payments FENHERE 1,067 976

Prepayments for other expenses H A EMAHRIE 9,882 5,641
Other deposits (mainly including HEhize (FE2aEHEH2 K

rental and building management BEFERERS)

fee deposits) 3,626 2,285

Other receivables H {th i Uy 5108 873 3,301

33,562 38,119

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade

L‘AT?%EA RS ] 9E$’$@E’JT£%F§H&

receivables at the end of the reporting period, presented based FERRERD T RREAHET)) -
on invoice date:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRETRT BT T
0-30 days 0Z30K 7,433 12,138
31-60 days 31£E60K 4,604 6,652
61-90 days 61290k 3,833 4,690
Over 90 days B EI0K 781 1,853
16,651 25,333

The Group’s sales to most customers are made on cash on
delivery, whilst the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 60 days (with 15 days of grace period in certain
cases) to certain major trade customers with established

trading records.

AEBRAABYFEPHHEAGTIRMA
R NET MARE-—RETRS
RHREFNETE

RIRH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aging analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it
have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Group to the counterparty.

Aging of trade receivables that are past due but
not impaired

22. ESREMEWRE &)

REMEAHEF R AREFEE
EEFPHNEEEREREFEEEE
FREE

EXHBEZEZGRERBFBRREN R
SsHRCBHNER (R TIXERED
) ERNMEEERYELREAE
HREBESRIDBR B AIWE - KNk
EUERAEREIREREMB K
SEWER LS BRT A TAEAR
HEMEERE TEAREERM
R FHOEARBREBEZFTEHRZ
RTERER

EEHBERBENE S BWKIR
AR

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BRETIT BT T

61-90 days 61E90K 3,833 4,690
Over 90 days R #mI0K 781 1,853
4,614 6,543

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of each reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

EETEESEYGIARS A K EE
AEBEZEERVIEREEEERRES
EREHR BHEZRUFEANE

BERALREPzBEAME HEE
RBReOEFREEAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

22.

23.

168

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from a
company controlled by a relative of Mr. Pang Siu Hin included in
the Group's trade receivables are:

22.

ESFREMEWRRE &)

R|ERR FFAREEE ZRUHK
A EERAZ DITRE —RBEIE
HE AR IR R

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Brighten Hong Limited HIBITAR AT
(“Brighten Hong”) ([853E77]) 588 1,514
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. RITERERE

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 4.8% (2016: 0.001% to 5%) per annum.

At 31 March 2017, certain of the Group’s bank balances
and cash with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$151,678,000 (2016: HK$172,181,000) were denominated
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

RITHEEMRETF0.001%54.8% (2016
F:0.001%E5% ) T HF KT & -

MR2017F3A31H AEELE
4 £151,678,0007% 7T (20164 :
172,181,000 7T ) B0 & T RITAE 84 I
REUARE(TARBDE M
ARBWIEBRBE TS LNEHRLRE
o BERTEEITINEE S  ESME
PR BIEINE S P BB BRI E K
PR 5 T AR BR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. ES R HMENSFRIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Trade payables B 5 ENFIR 9,571 7,646
Receipts in advance T8 W FKIE 5,443 1,476
Accruals (mainly including salaries and BT ERA (EE2REFS X
advertising expenses) BER%) 13,923 17,345
28,937 26,467
The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables NTARBERREAEENE FERN
at the end of the reporting period, presented based on invoice FEMERRST (REEEHZE7])
date:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
0-30 days 0E30k 7,686 4,075
31-60 days 31E60K 1,169 1,925
61-90 days 61E90K 390 926
Over 90 days H3BI0K 326 720
9,571 7,646
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IR AEBLIE
RERAMBRARARZEZ2IME & T
EERAEENABEREH - AE
M#HREREEERBZ SR TN

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes: Nk
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Deferred tax assets R TEE B 255 574
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE (255) (574)

RAFEMBEFECHRBNEIZE
EHBREREENEZSHIT

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:
Licenses Tax losses Total
2 i REGIR #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT 7B T T 7B T T
At 1 April 2015 2015%F4 418 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B T B8 A A 840 (840) -
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (5t A) /BB (266) 266 -
At 31 March 2016 20163 HA31H 574 (574) -
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (5t A) /1B B 319) 319 -
At 31 March 2017 #20175%E3A31H 255 (255) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. IEEBIE (&)
At 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of R2017F3A31H KREBH A H
approximately HK$22,220,000 (2016: HK$19,390,000) T T8 §5 48 49 /522,220,000 7T (2016
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax % : 19,390,000/ 7T.) - Al F1EHE 85 R
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately Mg Al o 2 5k 5% 55 B 18 R 491,548,000
HK$1,548,000 (2016: HK$3,480,000) of such losses. No 77T (20164F : 3,480,000/ 7T ) HERIE
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the FETRIE B EE o B oR 2 m B DA T
remaining HK$20,672,000 (2016: HK$15,910,000) due to the I 4 5t # 20,672,0005% JT (2016
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses in Hong % :15,910,0007% 7T ) HERIELE R IH &
Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The unrecognised tax E-ABVEEER ERBAE K
losses in the PRC will expire as follows: RE P B IEEERR T REE
K
2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

HEETT BT T
Tax losses expiring in T 1 B R JE i B A TR S 1R
- 2017 t0 2018 —2017F £20184F 814 2,034
- 2018 to 2019 —2018F £2019F 858 913
- 2019 to 2020 —20194F £20204F - -
— 2020 to 2021 —2020%F £20214F 3,691 3,926
2021 to 2022 — 00214 Z20224F 2,203 -

7,566 6,873

At 31 March 2017, the Group has deductible temporary R201793A31H » AEER AT E
differences of approximately HK$220,000 (2016: HK$361,000). iy 1 2 £ 49 /3220,00078 7T (20164 -
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such 361,000/ 7T ) © B 7 AR 2K 4 A1) 6 LA
deductible temporary difference due to the unpredictability of A BAEERBERANREREER
future profit streams. RIEET IR B E
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. RZA
Number Share
of shares capital
Bin& B B
HK$’'000
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREECIOB T B
Authorised: EE:
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 1201544818 -
31 March 2017 20163 A31B &
2017438318 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRERE:
At 1 April 2015 201594 A1H 800,000,000 80,000
Issue of shares on exercise of share 1T B T 21T (D
options (Note (i) (MI5EG) ) 468,000 47
At 31 March 2016 201693831 H 800,468,000 80,047
Issue of shares by subscription VAR 5 BT
(Note (i) (B Gi)) 280,000,000 28,000
Issue of shares on exercise of share (R 17 {50 B RSO AEE 1 32 17 1)
options (Note (iii)) ( B 5 (i) ) 9,648,000 965
At 31 March 2017 ®R20174E3HA31H 1,090,116,000 109,012
Notes: B 5E -
0] On 18 December 2015, 468,000 share options were exercised at a 0] 201512 5181 + 468,00017 i A &

subscription price of HK$0.826 per share, resulting in the issue of
468,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each. All these shares rank pari
passu with existing shares in all respects.

(i)~ On 27 April 2016, Fullshare entered into a conditional subscription (ii)
agreement with the Company for the subscription of 250,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.18 per share. On the same
day, Zall Capital Limited also entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with the Company for the subscription of 30,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.18 per share. All these
shares rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, 9,108,000 share options
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$0.826 per share and
540,000 share options were exercised at a subscription price of
HK$1.46 per share, resulting in the issue of 9,648,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each. All these shares rank pari passu with
existing shares in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 25 September 2014 to recognise the contribution
of certain employees, executives or officers of the Group who
have made or will make to the growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
24,640,000.

No further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

At 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 14,064,000 (2016:
23,172,000), representing approximately 1.29% (2016: 2.89%)
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

—E-tEER

26.

27.

N
Mzx: (&)

(i) HE201743A31H LEE - 9,108,000
7 BB AEIR FR0.826/8 TR B EE
171# }540,00017 i i% # 1% 5 %1 .46/
TC R R B B 1T - 8 £9,648,000/%
FRRMEEC.108 Tr) LB AR ER 1T - AT
BREBRHESTEEREROF
B3V

UGB ERNNTRK
BEXAMBEMNBRETS

KRAREIRA RS F B ET S
(TERAFEERERESE ) RIE
201459 A25H BB 2 IRFERIERA -
NEEAREEETEE TTHRABXK
BRA B AE B A EFTEDL S
SEHAER -

BIEERXARAEENERER SR 8
B ZBREMSENBROHESRE RS
& {B1B24,640,0000% A% (7 °

FARBBRMONB A ER EWE
RRRNEREERAFEEHBR
Rt B — IR B -

R2017F3A318  BIEE X A%
EAMEREAEBELRERITED
B IR R B9 RR 19 BB 14,064,000
A% (20164 : 23,172,0000% ) * B & R
AKRNBRZBEBEITIRG 2 #1.29%
(2016%F : 2.89% ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continueq)

27.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

ARG HERNNER 2
BRARARERBRESE (7)

RIBERAFEE B RAETBIM X
HE BB 2 BT

Number of Exercise price
Tranche Date of grant options granted per share  Vesting period Exercisable period
#HR % H A MEEEHEE BERTERE BENY TT{EH
1 25/09/2014 23,040,000 HK$0.826/8 7T 25/09/2014 - 16/10/2015 -
15/10/2019 24/09/2024
2 25/09/2014 1,600,000 HK$0.826/8 L 25/09/2014 - 16/10/2015 -
15/10/2017 24/09/2024
Notes: B 5

(@) Tranche 1 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

shall vest as follows:

(i)

)

(iv)

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2018 and
exercisable from 16 October 2018 to 24 September 2024;

and

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2019 and
exercisable from 16 October 2019 to 24 September 2024.

@ BB EIRDR SR E R
HEH R B E S R T

[0} 20%H) 8 A% 7 #5 7201510 A
1608 57 B & 7] R2015F10H 16
H E202449 A24 8 HiE1T(#

(i) 20%HY 5 AR ¥ 1 742016510 A
160 5 8 &k A A20165F10A16
H 202499 A24H BT

(i) 20%HY B AR 4 # 742017410 A
16H 578 M A 2017410816
HZE2024F9H24 8 HAR171F

(iv)  20%HY B8 B% 4 # 74 20184F 10 A
1608 5% B & 7] R2018F10A 16
H Z202459H 24 F B 171
*

(v)  20%H) B AR 1 1 742019410 A
16H 57 8 I 7] 7020194 10A 16
H Z£2024%F9 24 #ITTIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 27. URGBAEBRNAR &)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAHBEBRETE (&)
Notes: (Continued) MsE: (&)

(o)  Tranche 2 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme ) WREBRAAFBERERESSME
shall vest as follows: H AR IRE SR BT

()  30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and ()  30%H) & Bk # 1% 722015410 A

exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024; 160 5 B & AJ 2015610416

HZ202459 24 R 8fE17{E

(i)  30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and (i) 30%H) &5 iR # # 712016510 A
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024; 16H 5 8 & Al 2016F10A16
and H £2024F9A248 BRI 1T{F

&
(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and (i) 40%F#Y i B 4E 4§ 702017410 A
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024. 160 55 B & AT 2017410416
HZE2024%9 248 BAREI1T(F -
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREBFARATRERARAES
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during AR AR MR EITE T~ 2 AR fE
the year:
Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding at during during Outstanding at
Category of participant Tranche 01/04/2016 the year the year 31/03/2017
#2016F4A1H FRNTE FRigl  R2017F3A31A
BHEER #R 7 BE BE X7
Directors 1 21,600,000 (8,640,000) - 12,960,000
=2
Employees 1 1,152,000 (288,000) - 864,000
B8
2 420,000 (180,000) - 240,000
23,172,000 (9,108,000) - 14,064,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERI{TEE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.8267& T HK$0.8267%& T - HK$0.8267& T
I EME T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 27. URGBAEBRNAR &)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAHBEBRETE (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s THREBRLE—FEARTARERARA
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during BEREREFEBE T 2 ERER
the prior year: g :

Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2015 the year the year at 31/03/2016
1#2015%4R1H R Fhigh  R2016F3A31H
BHEER #R X7 ] BB X7
Directors 1 21,600,000 - - 21,600,000
£
Employees 1 1,440,000 (288,000 - 1,152,000
Eg
2 1,600,000 (180,000) (1,000,000 420,000
24,640,000 (468,000 (1,000,000) 23,172,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,320,000
RERATEE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.8267% 7T HK$0.82675 7T HK$0.8267% 75 HK$0.8267% 7T
I EMET A
In respect of the share options exercised during the vear, MERNBITE2EREMS  HITE
the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HE 2 REINETFHE /2238 T
HK$2.23 (2016: HK$1.44). (20164F 1 1.4487T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 25 September 2014. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contribution that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the
effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

27. LR AEROSR (2

BRETE

AR AR IE2014F9A25H BB H
RBRRWIERESE ([BARER
2l]) BB ERT B AR BB -
EEXRERETAERSEED AN
AR AEEEL 2 B BARERT
EloBEMMAEEERIEE 2 EMA
RBETF o

REBRESE ARREZSAM
AEBEIAREEFTAED 2 QA HZ
RAZMBRRZENES EE-
BE -EXAL TP fiEm- K8
B AaBA FAASABRERLAR
BN R D 2 i R

R IE R R AT B R AN A R E b R
RETE AIRBZERESR &
BRHNEE  ARETBBBAQAT
BB B 1T 230% - FTE RS EI AR
AIREEAMAEZBERLT REMRM—
FrREMER AT E R L KA RS
RN R BEITRETEITR
MEE TERBBAR I MERD %
TN 2 1% o W[ = ZRR R KB IE
HMITESRH 2 BREY R 2R H
BBBARARRAZ0.1%KEEBR
5,000,000/ 7T * A ZBE BB A QA
AR B BEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

27.

178

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continueqd)

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period as the board of
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event
not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

At 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 4,110,000 (2016: 2,400,000),
representing approximately 0.38% (2016: 0.30%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date.

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

27. LR AEROSR (2

BRERTE (2)

BEMERER ARABARARR T
BT (FRERBEREZRE-B
BRI IR BB S ZGFRES
SHRBEZROBEREDRE (EE
A NS B R L B HER +F)
P EA] B ] T ATT A ©

TEREHRAARERERE  EEBRTE
R ()% B AR R Rk 2 (&

MEZRFLERMAEZERARNZ
FHWTE: Ri)ARAFRD 2 HE
ZBEE -

20173 A318 1R 15 BB A% #E 51 2
ERHERMRITEZEREMS X
2 W15 € E A4,110,0008% (20164 :
2,400,000% ) B & R AR 8 R &
HE#1THH 2 40.38% (20164 :
0.30% ) °

AR AR =t 8 T IR O RS RO 2 5
(CRCHNE

Number of Exercise price
Tranche Date of grant options granted per share  Vesting period Exercisable period
#HR %A BEEEHEAE BiRfTEE HENY TT{EH
1 28/04/2015 2,400,000 HK$1.460/87C  28/04/2015 - 28/04/2016 —
27/04/2018 27/04/2025
2 28/04/2015 8,000,000 HK$1.460/87C  28/04/2015 - 28/04/2016 -
27/04/2018 27/04/2025
3 02/07/2015 1,000,000 HK$1.380/%7C  02/07/2015 - 02/07/2016 -
01/07/2018 01/07/2025
4 03/10/2016 2,160,000 HK$2.144%7L  03/10/2016 - 03/10/2017 -
02/10/2019 02/10/2026
5 18/11/2016 90,000 HK$2.2647%87C  18/11/2016 - 18/11/2017 -
17/11/2019 17/11/2026
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continueqd)

Notes:

(@)

Tranche 1 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest
as follows:

(i)

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and exercisable
from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and exercisable
from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

40% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

Tranche 2 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest

as follows:

(i)

(i)

37.5% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and
exercisable from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

37.5% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and
exercisable from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

25% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

B LEEH

27. LR AEROSR (2
IBRRESTE (&)

Wi

(@)

18 SRR AR A 8 2 K 1 AR
BRENT

(i)

(i)

30%HY i A% 1 145 742016574 A28
BB LA R20165F4 A28R &
20254 A27 H HAR 171

30%HY B A% #5 72201764 A28
HEREB N R2017F4 8288 &
20254 A27 A EAM 1T &

40% ) B A% 1 15 742018474 A28
BB LA R2018F4 A28R &
20254 A27 H HAEI {71 -

AR IE s A A ST B 4 e A IR 2fiE
AR

(i)

(i)

PTEEE (ER)ZRERLDH

37.5%H 5 I% 4 #5 7R 2016F4 A
28H 528 M Al A20164E4 A28H
202594 A27 H HARSTT{E 5

37.5%H) 5 I 15 7R 201744 A
28H B K& Al A201744 A28H
F20255%4 A27 B EABTTE : |2

25%H % A% 1 45 74 20184F4 A28

BB LA 201854 A28H &
20254 A27 H HA 1718 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continuea) 27. URPREBRNSR(#)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRESTE (7)
Notes: (Continued) MsE: (&)
€)  Tranche 3 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest () IRIREEARAEST B X L BBt RS AR

as follows:

0} 37.5% of the options shall vest on 2 July 2016 and exercisable
from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2025;

(ii) 37.5% of the options shall vest on 2 July 2017 and exercisable
from 2 July 2017 to 1 July 2025; and

(iii) 25% of the options shall vest on 2 July 2018 and exercisable
from 2 July 2018 to 1 July 2025.

(d)  Tranche 4 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest (d)
as follows:

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2017 and
exercisable from 3 October 2017 to 2 October 2026;

(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2018 and
exercisable from 3 October 2018 to 2 October 2026; and

(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2019 and
exercisable from 3 October 2019 to 2 October 2026.

(e)  Tranche 5 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest ©
as follows:

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2017 and
exercisable from 18 November 2017 to 17 November 2026;

(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2018 and
exercisable from 18 November 2018 to 17 November 2026;
and

(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2019 and
exercisable from 18 November 2019 to 17 November 2026.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continuea) 27. URGBAEBRNAR &)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREE (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TRFEBFARAANBERES SR
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the year: TiEREY
Granted Exercised
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2016 the year the year at 31/03/2017
®2016F481H FREH FRTHE  R201753831H
BREER #R RITHE #H #E RITHE
Directors 1 1,500,000 - (450,000) 1,050,000
=2
4 - 2,160,000 - 2,160,000
Employees 1 300,000 - (90,000) 210,000
Eg
5 - 90,000 - 90,000
Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000
el
2,400,000 2,250,000 (540,000) 4,110,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 180,000
RERATEE
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.460#& 7T HK$2.1493 T HK$1.4603# T HK$1.837# T
IR EME TS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 27. URGBAEBRNAR &)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREE (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s THRFRE LEFARANBERES SR
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the prior TiEREY
year:
Granted Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2015 the year the year at 31/03/2016
#2015%4R1H FREH FRigl R2016F3A31H
BHEER #R KT ] BB X7
Directors 1 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
E%
2 - 8,000,000 (8,000,000) -
Employees 1 - 300,000 - 300,000
Eg
3 - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
Consultant 1 - 600,000 - 600,000
E
- 11,400,000 (9,000,000 2,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERATE
Weighted average exercise price - HK$1.45378 T HK$1.4517%8 75 HK$1.4607% 7T
AEENETHY
In respect of the share options exercised during the vear, MERNTHEERENS  RITEBH
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is ZINEFHREE B2.7875 7T (20164 :
HK$2.78 (2016: Nil). ) o
During the year ended 31 March 2017, options under the HE2017FE3A31H IEFEE  AQF]
Share Option Scheme were granted on 3 October 2016 and M20165F1043H k2016511 A18H
18 November 2016. The estimated fair value of the options RIEEREFEREBRE -RNZF
granted under the Share Option Scheme on those dates are HE REBERE SR T ERE
approximately HK$1,394,000 and HK$82,000 respectively. HET R FED R4 A1,394,00078 7T &

82,0008 TT °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 27. U AEBNSRK #)

Share Option Scheme (Continueq)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted on 28 April 2015 and 2
July 2015. The estimated fair values of the options granted to
directors and employees under the Share Option Scheme on
those dates are approximately HK$6,694,000 and HK$566,000
respectively.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant

BRERTE (2)

HZE2016F3A31 B LEFE A QRN
20154 H28H &2015¢7H2 AR #&
BRETERLERE - RZERE
BRIEBREFEETEEREENE
I 5T 2 B 5 Bl 476,694,000
7T }2566,00078 7T ©

“IEAYREEELE AR GEBR
Bz FE - FEBREZAFEM
RzB8RBERDEREE 2 &EM
ate ﬁ%ﬂﬂéﬁz{ﬁfﬁﬂﬁl :FEE?LTE“”

A%KTEZZDT-

#HAH 18/11/2016 03/10/2016 02/07/2015 28/04/2015
Share price W& HK$2.230i# 7T HK$2.060# T HK$1.350/% T HK$1.4607% T
Exercise price 110 fE HK$2.264#7T  HK$2.144#8T  HKS1.380 7T  HK$1.460/E 7T
Option life PR HR 10 years& 10 years& 10 years 10 years?F
Expected volatility TR 18 40.68% 40.06% 43.13% 42.90%
Dividend yield REM=E 1.17% 0.97% 1.48% 0.68%
Risk-free interest rate g e 1.34% 0.92% 1.88% 1.38%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the share prices of comparable companies over the
previous ten years.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$3,743,000 (2016: HK$6,142,000) for the year in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

“E-LEFR TEEE

EHURIE DR ABE T F A LR AR
P (B 2 JE 52K e T B E

AEFBERAFERRBEBAR R
o2 BRI 2 B L 48 5B 493,743,00078
7T (20164F : 6,142,000/ 7T, ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

28.

184

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
approximately HK$1,768,000 (2016: HK$1,481,000) for the
year, and represent contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

8. RIRER T &

AEBERMETENAERBEITRM
BEMEAEEAE A ENEEBY
RASBERNERE  AXFEAEFE
TER-

AEERFEEE T BB RLE
BREEERAKENFENKE KK
BZRRF AR —E A 2O L RIR K
BAEEEL R IABZBNLE -
AEBEBRARENFTENEEERR
fEH R E AR o

AEERZABEREMEERER
H i SR B 4B B SZ 49 21,768,000 TT
(20164 : 1,481,000 L) ' BAEE
BIEZEHER TR EHZSE
BRI HR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2. BELTRS
(a) Transactions with related parties (@ BEEEEITNRS
During the year, the Group entered into the following MRAFE ANEEHERERF L
significant transactions with related parties: TIERRS !
2017 2016
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
MESESR &R 3 1:3 1 T T AT T
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan  Rental expenses for premises 669 497
Lai Man (executive directors of (Note (i)
the Company) WEBLFZ (W)
ZOTREREBER L
(RABIHITESE) Purchase of properties - 18,800
(Note (ii))

BE AW EE (B 5E(Gi)

Acquisition of subsidiaries - 9,800
(Note (iii))
Wi B BT /B =) (B = i) )

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Packing costs (Note (iv)) - 789
(a company in which BERA (FFE(v))

Mr. Pang Siu Hin and
Ms. Kwan Lai Man have
beneficial interests)

ANMZERE (ZITERENERE
RIHERERER DA

Brighten Hong (a company Sales of goods (Note (v)) 3,562 7,684
controlled by a relative of BEmiEE (MFEV)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin)

HIET (RELTEEZ —BHE
2| /NI D)
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

186

(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Notes:

(il

The rental expenses for premises payable to the above
related parties are based on tenancy agreements entered into
between the parties involved. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these transactions have been entered into on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business.

The consideration was determined by reference to the
prevailing market price of similar properties in close proximity.

The consideration was determined by reference to the
business valuation prepared by an independent valuer.

Products packed by Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical were carried
out in the normal course of business at mutually agreed prices
and terms.

The sales to Brighten Hong were carried out in the normal
course of business at mutually agreed prices and terms.

Outstanding balance with related party

Details of outstanding balance with related party of the
Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in
note 22.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of the Company’s directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in note 11.

20. BERTXRF (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. WEEKTEB A A
On 1 June 2015, the Group acquired the entire interest 2015F6 18 - A& B U KM=
in Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical for the consideration of FEEH) 2 EPARHE - KB 79,800,000/
HK$9,800,000. Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and its subsidiary TToAMEREREWBAGEEZN
is principally engaged in packing of products. EEMBPE-
HK$’000
BETT
Consideration transferred ClEEAE
Cash bk 9,800
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately Wt B 4B B X 2 49248,00078 T I £ 5T A
HK$248,000 have been excluded from the consideration PEERE WERLFELIFEE
transferred and have been recognised as expenses in the mREMEPENER [1TERAX] BT
prior year, within the “administrative expenses” line item BRAEMX -
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
HK$’000
BETT
Assets acquired and liabilities RIEBHBNBZEER
recognised at the date of BREZARWMT:
acquisition are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment I ER NN 42
Intangible assets | EE 5,090
Deposit and prepayments ASREZEZE R
for life insurance policies B FIE 4,864
Inventories FE 2,765
Trade and other receivables 2 5 R HMEWRFKIA 981
Tax refundable ARER N 78
Bank balances and cash MITEBR LIRS 615
Trade and other payables B 5 K H A FE S RUE (766)
13,669
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30.

188

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)  30. W B 7] (42)

The trade and other receivables acquired with a fair value of
approximately HK$106,000 at the date of the acquisition had
gross contractual amounts of approximately HK$106,000,
representing the best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows expected to be collected.

FAULEE B B A F{E49106,0008 T2 E
WEESNEMERFIBZEANE
B 5 #7106,000/8 7T » HEE R UEE B
HETEH IR E A IR & RO RER
ae

HK$’000
BETT
Bargain purchase gain arising on BEEEZREKREBLS
acquisition
Consideration transferred EEENE 9,800
Less: Net assets acquired B BWEEEFE (13,669)
Bargain purchase gain arising WEBELZHE
on acquisition e B iz 2 (3,869)
HK$’000
BETT
Net cash outflow on acquisition WREEZHREBRE
Consideration paid in cash ERBESRE 9,800
Less: cash and cash equivalent W EREBRERIRESE
balances acquired B &% 615)
9,185

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 is
approximately HK$8,083,000 loss attributable to Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical and its subsidiary. Revenue for the year ended
31 March 2016 includes approximately HK$24,000 generated
from Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and its subsidiary for that
year.

E Z=2016F3A31H L FE 2% 7
#98,083,000/% T &5 18 57 8 1A A A0 = &
L HME AR - B 2201653 H31H
HFEZRABEFRNRERMER
22 I B A7) 4924,00078 7T ©
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

31.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2015, the total
group revenue for year ended 31 March 2016 would have
been approximately HK$227,460,000, and the profit for the
year ended 31 March 2016 would have been approximately
HK$20,925,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April
2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical been acquired at
the beginning of the prior year, the directors have calculated
depreciation of plant and equipment acquired on the basis of
the fair values arising in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the
pre-acquisition financial statements.

30. WEBFI B =) (&)

fiti U B E 18 R 2015F4 A1H 2 =R

B A= EH £2016F3A31H L FE
B UL A 4BRE 1 %) /227,460,000 7T -

m& £2016F3A31 8 It F & & F 45
49 /£20,925,0007 It © B £ & BHE
SRR WIHEAEERZKEER
2015F4 A1H X M B R &5 2 A
REBIER  TRIERRFEE 2 TER

RETHBBAMERER F—FF
FYEHLEBRTAEEN [BE W
ARCEMNE EFCREXEHE G
A AR B B A S T SF U BB S ¥R
RATERNREEF ERE LB
FrE-

OPERATING LEASES 31. REHE
The Group as lessee TEEEREBEA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Minimum lease payments paid under — &K&HEHE NHHIE
operating leases MER K
— Premises — W 5,606 4,214
- Office equipment /NS 1,023 943
6,629 5,157
“E-LEFR TEEE (BB ERERAH 189
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31. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 3. KEMRE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continueqd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

FEBEER/EBEA (£)

R EREERE NEERE A
B2 HON AR FERE KA
AER BRI

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

BRTT BT T

Within one year —FR 3,214 1,013
In the second to fifth years FEFRF

inclusive (EEMFBREEN) 5,041 2,607

8,255 3,620

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its premises and office equipment.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

REHENFTIEARELEYE MR
NEREENZEHE -

&5

AEBEEAHER

R EHEAERE NEEDE2ER
FIEA T R ZKEHEE K

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

BYETT BT T

Within one year R—FRA - 213
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EARKIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Capital expenditure contracted for but LU EE W2 « E M 5% 1
not provided for in the consolidated EETABERTEAR & B BT
financial statements in respect of BENEARX
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 3,270 2,067
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 33. FEHFBRERS

Part of the consideration for the issue of 250,000,000 shares to
Fullshare that occurred during the year comprised the ordinary
shares of Fullshare.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company (comprising issued share capital and
reserves).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of the capital, and will balance the
gearing ratio through the payment of dividends and new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

TE-LFFR

34.

FL3£77250,000,0000% A% 17 F £ 5% i A
AEBEAZHBHIREBRELER T
BT o

B[ b T

AEBERHERNUABRASEZE
BEURKERLE RARAEBELCER
HERARZHNFEAFTERARRZ
O R BB EBREREFHRD

%o

AEENERAERESARAEEA
FE(E s (BIEE BITRAN L&) -

AREBEZERQEL R 2 ELERA
BABEB - AEBEREARARE
AR Z AR - 35 F B S R
B RBEITHI ARBITHESNE
EERBEHNFEERNBELR
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 34. EXEBERE #)

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting period AEBRREHBRERKEZEREE
was as follows: b=
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT 7S EE T
Debt (i) &) - -
Equity (i) 18 24 i) 870,555 346,498
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE -% -%
() Debt includes long— and short-term borrowings. 0 EEREERMREHER
(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. iy HERVEAEEMEERLRE:
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. €T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments () SET AR5
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT PSR T
Financial assets SMEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 408,552 -
Loans and receivables B R EY A
- Deposit and prepayments for ~ —ASREBEZIRE R
life insurance policies TEfT IR 5,010 4,850
— Trade and other receivables —EBFZ R EMbEWFIA 21,118 30,855
- Bank balances and cash —iRTTEBRNIRE 288,851 239,742
314,979 275,447
Financial liabilities eMmER
Financial liabilities at bicg 3= o Ny = g
amortised cost THEE
- Trade and other payables —B 5 Kk EMEMNFIE 23,494 24,991
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 35. @R T A (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBREAREEEEREX

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies, trade and other receivables, bank
balances, trade and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with certain of these financial
instruments include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge against the
foreign currency risk exposure. However, management of
the Group will consider to hedge these balances should
the need arise.

—E-tEER

AEEZTESHMTABEAHE
HERE ASREZRENE
IR B 5 N H At 8 WRROR -
RITHESB B REMENRK
BHe-ZZaMIAZFRBRRERE
EMiERE - BETREFSRT
B zRBRBENSER (8
RSN R AR R M B AR R
) FERBRERBESRER -
BRAMAREZ F AR 2 BORE
RIX -EEBYHZERMAETT
B MBS YR AREIR BEAE T B Ut
REUEE a5

SR

rEBEETEMEENBEN
SNESETE - {50 2 5% [ TH R B 2R OR
BELZER KAEEYERL
EEBE W LRSS E R - R
m AEREEEERNERER
ERYEIR T

fTEEE (AR ERERAT 193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

194

(b) Financial risk management objectives and ()]
policies (Continuead)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

35. 2@ T A (&)

BEEREEERRBE

(#&)
SRR ()
FR S BRI 45 R - RSB LASH

BitECEREERERABEZ
BREEMT:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Monetary assets denominated in: LA R FIIMNEHER B & E
- RMB — AR 155,089 175,226
— United States dollar (‘US$”) —%7 (%)) 6,784 5,529
— New Taiwan dollar (‘NT$”) — ek ((wakl) 3,122 1,592
Monetary liabilities denominated in: LA T FIINEESHEH G A E
- RVB - AR 7,080 5,948
-NT$ —¥a% 570 1,317

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the currency risk associated
with US$ and HK$ is considered minimal. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effect of fluctuation in RMB and
NT$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB and NT$.
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit and
a negative number indicates a decrease in post-tax profit
where HK$ strengthens 10% against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.
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35. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREEBEREE
policies (Continued) (%)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) JhEEfE ()
Sensitivity analysis B E T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Impact of RMB AR¥zZRE
Profit or loss B (14,081) (16,928)
Impact of NT$ sakerg
Profit or loss B (255) (28)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. Management
will monitor the price risk and take appropriate actions
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the equity instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, investments revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$20,428,000 (2016:Nil) for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair value of available-
for-sale investments.

—E-tEER

ARBEERBR GREDITAR
WEEIRBRE B Z SME R R - R
5 B A8 RS 2 [ B I T S R
REEMEAZZER -

1E15 R

AEBERER EHRAZEZ
A A B AR R o B IR B A
SERERER YRNEFRE
REUEE 178 -

AT URE DT IR BN s B
HmE R A EREREE

MR TEE® LA TRE5%:
AEBRESHFEBEETHRE
EXRENTFEEB MG M, HD
20,428,000 7T (20164 : #&) ©
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continuead)

Interest rate risk

The Group is primarily exposed to fair value interest rate

risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the credit risk of the Group is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation or high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

196 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017

35. 2@ T A (&)
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/Z

35. @I A (&)
b HERBREEBEZEREEK

policies (Continuead)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for

(#)

MBI E TR

EERRBECRARTE ~&
BERTHEFERERREHD
RAe RBR2EBYKF  AAK
SEzE2REES  WHRER
ERERBZRE-

TRAMIPALAEEEHEEL
RBRARZMBER - ZRIIRE
TREBEZAMBRASTRER
2 FTKIBEN RS EAFL
EBRzRFAH-cRAGBZE

financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment

HEDNRE W ERNEREE -

dates.
Liquidity table B EZ I
On demand Total Total
or less than 1to3 undiscounted carrying
Non-derivative financial liabilities 1 month months cash flows amount
BEXEH —E XURES
EfTEEMAR PR—EA =R nENE FEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT
2017 20175
Trade and other payables B REMENZE 18,078 5,416 23,494 23,494
2016 20165
Trade and other payables B o REMEMNFE 21,244 3,747 24,991 24,991
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

35. 2@ T A (&)

()

(0 TMTAZAFETE

HAEEBEL L\ FEEZ
EHEERETHERBZLF
=}

RERESHEERE A&
BETERMEEEATE
AtEe TRV BAZEFS
BEEZAFEEENEE
B (LERAAMKERM

used). N N8R ) o
Fair value at 31 March Valuation

Financial assets REZA=Z+—HZLFE Fair value technique(s)

eRMEE 2017 2016  hierarchy and key input(s)
HK$’000 HK$000 OFEHFHR HERGREIEGASE
A¥TT AETT

Equity securities listed in 408,552 N/A  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an

Hong Kong classified as TEB B active market

available-for-sale investments

in the consolidated statement

of financial position
RiEa I BIRARDER

AfHEREY

B LTRAES
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(c) Fair value measurements of financial

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

B LEEH

35. eE T A

L (%)

(0 TMTAZAFETE

(i) FHFZRAEEEEL L FER

B22MEEREMARZ
AFME

ADTEFEH A ERAR
RS e e
E7SRMAERSMAEY
AT

ARAESZRG NRAH
BRER NIRRT R Z
TREELEBBEIRE
BEEAENFEMES-
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

36.

ARABREEMBRAFE

MEBARZ—REHR

B 45 H R A RO AR B2 )

period are set out below. ARSI
Place of Proportion
incorporation/ .
ownership interest
establishment/  Class of Paid up issued/
operations shares registered capital ’h\eld by the Company
Name of subsidiary ML, B/ held BRITRERE FAARARERRALA Principal activities
MELRRE EEmE BERBER BF BREF 2017 2016 FERH
Hin Sang Group Holding ~ British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$30,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited RERAES ERR 30,000% 7T (direct) (direct)  {REMER
PTEEEERERAR (E#) (B#&)
HM Advertising Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$880,000 100% 100% Formulating and implementing
Limited A% LTk 880,0007% 7 (indirect) (indlirect) overall marketing and branding
(H#) (E#) strategies and preparing and
controlling annual budgets for
marketing activities for individual
branded products
HIET RAETT R AR 2 B R i R IS A
HIET RAEA TR R 24 R m MR R B
WEBNFRRE
Chong Sang (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,800 100% 100% Trading and distribution of skin care
Company Limited A% LTk 1,800/ 7T (indirect) (indlirect) products, personal care products
A (BR)BRARA (F%) (H%&) and household products
BERDHEEER EARRER
REEER
Hin Sang Hong Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$280,000 100% 100% Investment holding; brand
Limited A% LTk 280,0007% 7 (indirect) (indlirect) development and management;
FTHEITBERAR (H#) (E#) and development, sales and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

s 3 Y5 A WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/Z

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

36. XRATFEFEMBLATFE

MEBLRZ—RER (&)

Place of .
Proportion
incorporation/ .
establishment/  Class of Paid up issued/ ownership interest
operations shares registered capital ,h\eld by the Compiny
Name of subsidiary SEMREE, B/ held BETRER FAAREATRRSLA Principal activities
MEBLEEE HEEmE BERPEN KX /BREE 2017 2016 TERE
PTEEREE CRI) PRC Registered RMB65,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding; Wholesale of
BB R A (Formerly HFE capital AR #65,000,0007T (indirect) (indlirect) healthcare products of Hin Sang
known as T4 {18 % HER (FI%&) (%) (474 and skin care products
(FINBRAR) of Beautymate (EMOE) in the
(*Hin Sang Holding PRC
Group (Shenzhen) REER: R ERBEITANRRBE
Company Limited”)* mEENOFREEER
TREE ORI BRAF PRC Registered RMB1,180,000 100% - Wholesale of healthcare products of
(“Hin Tai Pharmaceutical B capital AR 1,180,0007T (indirect) Hin Sang (974 ) and skin care
(Shenzhen) Company B E R (F%) products of Beautymate (A0
Limited”)* &) in the PRC
RAP B BT A MR E R REM
DHEHERER
Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 100% 100% Property holding
& Research Institute Co., & LAk 18T (indirect) (indirect) ~ MIEREE
Limited (M%) (F%)
BRHERRMERAE
ENzFEBRERRF Tawan Registered NT$24,000,000 100% 100% Wholesale of skin care products
(Beautymate =) capital 24,000,000%7 & # (indirect) (indlirect) under the brand of Beautymate
International Limited”)* A AR (M%) (E#) (ZEM27) in Taiwan
RAEERBEZN2ERENES
Em
Tai Wo Tong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$24,000,000 100% 100% Packing of products developed and
Pharmaceutical (Hong &8 LTak 24,000,000 T (indirect) (indirect) sold by the Group
Kong) Company Limited (rI%) (%) EREERERBENER
AMEREE (FHE)
BRAA
Hin Fai International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 68% 68% Online sale of products developed
Holding Company e Lak 10,000,000/% 7T (indirect) (indiirect) by the Group
Limited (M) (E%) BLEEFEEREMNER
ITEERE R AR

“E-tEER

PTEEE (ER)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

36.

AATEEMERRFE
(4)

MEBLRZ—RER (&)

Place of .
. . Proportion
incorporation/ .

. . . ownership interest
establishment/  Class of Paid up issued/

i h istered canital held by the Company
operations shares registered capita =

- ERREARARERLA

Name of subsidiary SEMREE, B, held BETRER . = Principal activities

HEARRE HEMR BEROERN BF EMREF 2017 2016 IERH

Hin Feng Group Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 51% - Investment holding
(International) Holding &% EERk 60,000,000/ 7T (indirect) BREER
Company Limited (M%)

(*Hin Feng”)

TEEE (HR)ERER
RETHTE]

Hin Sang Children Chinese  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 51% - Provision of Chinese medical
Medical & Health Service &5 L@ 10,000,000/ 7T (indirect) healthcare related services
Company Limited (M) R EREEBRE

MTERERERRHAL
BRATF

# A wholly foreign-owned enterprise # —MEINEEEDE

*

The English name is for identification only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

- R L EEERD

R EZRA/IBERFEAEBE
BABEZAKENBAR EER
R ENEMHBARZENGRER
fEERITR-

BUEM B A RN FRETEAELE
%0
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

36.

AATEEMERRFE
(#)

BREARFEREZZHZER
BRARFE

TRRIAEERERERNIFEBE s
ZIHFEEMBRAFG:

Place of
Name of incorporation/ Proportion of ownership interests  Loss allocated to non-controlling  Accumulated non-controlling
subsidiary operations held by non-controlling interests interest interests
HELRER BRERL/ EEHE FERERRFZAAEERLE AEEFBRERER RitEaRER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR BETTT ERTT BETT
Hin Feng” Hong Kong 49% - 1,700 — 21,751 -
ik 30
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controling interests 8,219 3,201
BEFERRER BUFERMBAR
35,970 3,201

*excluding non-controlling interests of Hin Feng’s subsidiary

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

—E—LEEH

* NEETENE AR Z R R

AEBEHBEEAFEBRER 2 EH B
REIZHMBERBETIFEINMT T
I ER M BESEREEN 2
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/&

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

204

36. XRATFEFEMBLATFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
Hin Feng and subsidiaries TTERKEQR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT TT
Current assets mENEE 61,615 -
Non-current assets EMENEE 95 -
Current liabilities mENBE (55) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE - -
Net assets BEFE 61,655 -
Revenue WA 330 -
Expenses X (3,801) -
Loss for the year FAEE (3,471) -
Other comprehensive income FAEMEERE
for the year 108 -
Total comprehensive expense FRNETEHBE 45
for the year (3,363) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling ERITEMIEERERRE
interests of Hin Feng - -
Net cash outflow from & EEIR R R
operating activities (9,090) -
Net cash outflow from REEEE M FE
investing activities (1,940) -
Net cash inflow from BEEHHR R AFRE
financing activities 65,018 -
Net increase in cash and Re MRS EEYIEINFEE
cash equivalents 53,988 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/Z

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. KR A BN KRR B
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RENBARRIRE 71,618 71,618
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 408,552 -
480,170 71,618
Current assets M EE
Prepayments B FRIA 337 309
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 357,934 253,638
Bank balances IRITHE R 198 103
358,469 254,050
Total assets BEHSE 838,639 325,668
Current liabilities mE AR
Accruals JEETE A 38 60
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 38 4
76 64
Net current assets B ERE 358,393 253,986
Total assets less current liabilities BHEHERTDER 838,563 325,604
Capital and reserves BEX R
Share capital [E&N 109,012 80,047
Reserves 1 729,551 245,557
Total equity HaKE 838,563 325,604
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved RRAB BRI K E R201746H23
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June HES=gf g REETE W HIA
2017 and are signed on its behalf by: TEERKREE:
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
BOE FES
Director Director
EBE EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 220174331 H 1 F/E

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

206

37. XD R MR R KRR AR

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (#%&)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: AREREEE:
Investments Share
Share revaluation options  Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
BE
BRiRE ERAGR BRERZE GIEERH Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETr B¥Tr BT A%Tx
At 1 April 2015 M2015F4 A1H 219,351 - 2,402 8,831 230,584
Profit for the year R - - - 24496 24,496
Dividends recognised as BRAD KRS
distribution - - - (16,005) (16,005)
Issue of shares on exercise of [ 771 i i M 217
share options &1 598 - (258) - 340
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FEFRE# 45 E AR D
share-based payments REBHRR - - 6,142 - 6,142
At 31 March 2016 201693 A31H 219,949 - 8,286 17,322 245,557
Profit for the year F R - - - 27,648 27,648
Fair value gain on AHHEREN AT
available-for-sale Bz
investments - 8,314 - - 8,314
Dividends recognised BRAD KRS
as distribution - - - (32,569) (32,569)
Issue of shares by RS N BITRM
subscription 469,512 - - - 469,512
Issue of shares on exercise of 171 BT MEE1T
share options B 7 12,832 - (5,486) - 7,346
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FEsRMRE 25 45 E AR (D
share-based payments BEBROMR - - 3,743 - 3,743
At 31 March 2017 #201753A31H 702,293 8,314 6,543 12,401 729,551
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # 2201743531 H I F/&Z

38. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 June 2017, T2 & (B R)ABR A A], a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into two investment cooperation
agreements (the “Investment Cooperation Agreements”) with g
REPELREREZERARAF N relation to the formation of
new companies to engage in the establishment and operation
of Chinese medical clinics in Nanjing, the PRC. Pursuant to
each of the Investment Cooperation Agreements, the capital
contribution shall be RMB20,000,000 each and it shall be
contributed as to 70% by $T2#% & (=) AR /A F] and as to
30% by FI T EEREREEEARAF.

3. MEMBEH

MR2017F6 H8H AR B Z B A 7
PTERE(BR)ERAFIERMRE
PELRERERABMR ARG LMG
KEGIERZ ([REAERZRE]) R
RBEBKMLHT AR NBEKTRE
BARPEERZPEBZH -RES
REGERE SHESEBEAAR
#20,000,0007T ' WS HTEKRE (8
F)BRARHETONEHEREHE
EREMEEZRARARIHEI

—E-tEER TEEE(ER)2ERERAT 207



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T AR S 55

OPERATING RESULTS

e e
REREE

For the Year Ended 31 March
HE3A31HLERE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT ERETT
Revenue LN 235,114 253,171 214,959 227,460 201,815
Gross Profit E7 98,410 142,341 122,663 138,369 133,243
Profit for the year FREF 15,383 49,704 11,051 21215 8,308

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERER

For the Year Ended 31 March

HESRMALEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BT BETT EBETT
Non-current assets FRBDEE 23,990 42,600 48,610 83,093 565,502
Current assets MBEE 179,336 115,684 313,504 290,942 334,295
Total assets HEHE 203,326 158,284 362,114 374,035 899,887
Current liabilities g =R 101,294 63,989 27,432 27,537 29,332
Net current assets mEBEERE 78,042 51,695 286,072 263,405 304,963
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTDAR 102,032 94,295 334,682 346,498 870,555
Non-current liabilities FRBRR 6,280 - - - -
Net assets BERE 95,752 94,295 334,682 346,498 870,555
Capital and reserves BEREMH

Share capital A 30,000 30,000 80,000 80,047 109,012
Reserves i 65,752 64,295 254,682 263,250 725,573
Equity attrbutable to owners of the Company AR A AJEIGE 95,752 94,295 334,682 343,297 834,585
Non-controlling interests FiERER - - - 3,201 35,970
Total equity R 95,752 94,295 334,682 346,498 870,555
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